



Healthy Futures

A Strategic Framework to Prevent the Harm caused by Obesity, and Improve Diets and Levels of Physical Activity in Northern Ireland



CONSULTATION ANALYSIS REPORT

May 2025

Table of Contents

Ministerial Foreword	
Chapter 1: Background and Introduction	6
Chapter 2: Public Consultation Process	8
Chapter 3: Analysis	10
Screening	11
Vision	15
Principles	18
Population Level Outcomes	21
Themes	24
Healthy Policies	27
Healthy Places	
Healthy People	50
Collaboration and a Whole System Approach	58
Chapter 4: Conclusion	65
Annex A: List of Consultation Questions	66
Annex B: Evidence Submitted by Responders	70

Tables

Table 1: List of consultation engagement events	9
Table 2: Breakdown of consultation responses received	10
Table 3: Q3: Vision. Breakdown of responses	15
Table 4: Q4 - Principles. Breakdown of responses	18
Table 5: Q5 - Outcomes. Breakdown of responses	21
Table 6: Q6 - Thematic Approach. Breakdown of responses	24
Table 7: Q7 - Healthy Policies. Breakdown of responses	27
Table 8: Q8 - Healthy Policies: Priorities. Breakdown of responses	29
Table 9: Q10 - Healthy Places. Breakdown of responses	39
Table 10: Q11 - Healthy Places: Priorities. Breakdown of responses	41
Table 11: Q13 - Healthy People. Breakdown of responses	50
Table 12: Q14 - Healthy People: Priorities. Breakdown of responses	52
Table 13: Q16 - Collaboration and a Whole System Approach. Breakdown of responses	58
Table 14: Q17 - Collaboration and a Whole System Approach: Priorities. Breakdown of responses	60

Figures

Figure 1: Breakdown of responses to the overall vision for the new strategic framework	. 15
Figure 2: Breakdown of responses to the development and implementation principles	. 18
Figure 3: Breakdown of responses - long-term population level outcomes across the life course	. 21
Figure 4: Breakdown of responses to the key areas covered within the thematic approach	. 24
Figure 5: Breakdown of responses to the Healthy Policies theme	27
Figure 6: Breakdown of responses to the priorities for the Healthy Policies theme	29
Figure 7: Breakdown of responses to the Healthy Places theme	39
Figure 8: Breakdown of responses to the priorities for the Healthy Places theme	. 41
Figure 9: Breakdown of responses to the Healthy People theme	50
Figure 10: Breakdown of responses to the pregnancy and early years priorities	52
Figure 11: Breakdown of responses to the Collaboration and a Whole System Approach theme	58
Figure 12: Breakdown of responses to the Collaboration and a Whole System Approach priorities	60

Images

All cover images used kindly provided by the European Coalition for People living with Obesity - <u>https://ecpomedia.org/image-bank/</u>. Photographers: Ladislav Adámek, SPORT IMAGE, spol. s r.o. <u>www.adamekfoto.cz</u> and Nina H. Niestroj, NHS Photodesign. <u>www.nhs-photodesign.com</u>

© https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-nd/2.0/

Ministerial Foreword

I am pleased to publish this analysis report outlining the findings of the public consultation on the vision, principles, themes, and population-level outcomes for a new 'Healthy Futures' obesity strategic framework for Northern Ireland. Supporting and enabling people to improve their health and wellbeing is a key objective of my Department. Not only will this help to make our population healthier, which



will improve wellbeing and ensure better quality of life for our citizens; but it will also help to reduce demand on our health and social care services, which are coming under increasing and sustained pressure.

The health of the population is of central importance for the Department for Health and the Northern Ireland Executive. Our mission, as set out in the draft Programme for Government 'Our Plan: Doing What Matters Most', is to ensure that every individual can lead a long, healthy, and fulfilling life.

The World Health Organisation has identified obesity as a critical global health challenge, with its prevalence nearly tripling since 1975. The current strategic framework, A Fitter Future For All (AFFFA), aimed to empower the population to make healthier choices and create an environment conducive to active lifestyles. Despite some progress, the framework has not fully achieved its targets, largely due to the systemic challenges posed by the wider environment and the determinants of health.

In response to these challenges, my Department initiated a co-production process to refresh the strategic direction for obesity prevention. This involved collaboration with various stakeholders, including people with lived experience of overweight and obesity, health professionals, academics, and community representatives, to develop a new strategy that addresses the complexities of obesity and its social determinants. The consultation process has engaged a wide range of participants, ensuring that diverse perspectives inform the development of effective health policies.

The consultation findings indicate overwhelming support for the proposed vision, principles, thematic approach, and overarching population-level priorities of the new strategic

framework, emphasising the need to redouble efforts to prevent overweight and obesity, while also calling for a holistic, patient-centred approach to obesity management. Respondents have highlighted the importance of addressing health inequalities, promoting community engagement, and ensuring equitable access to resources and support for marginalised populations. The focus is shifting from individual responsibility to systemic changes that foster healthier environments.

As we move forward, it is crucial to develop and implement a comprehensive strategy that integrates health policies, community initiatives, and collaborative efforts across sectors. This approach will not only address the immediate challenges of obesity but also lay the groundwork for a healthier future for all residents of Northern Ireland. By prioritising prevention, education, and support, we can create a sustainable framework that promotes well-being and resilience in our communities.

I wish to put on record my thanks to all those who have contributed to this work over the last number of years, and hope that I will soon be in a position to bring forward and invest in a new strategic framework.

> MIKE NESBITT MLA MINISTER FOR HEALTH

Chapter 1: Background and Introduction

The harms related to living with obesity, having poor diets or not being physically active, are recognised by the World Health Organisation (WHO) as one of the most serious global health challenges we face. The WHO European Regional Obesity Report 2022 states the "Recent estimates suggest that overweight and obesity is the fourth most common risk factor for non-communicable diseases, after high blood pressure, wider dietary risks and tobacco". It is also important to note that this issue is not specific to Northern Ireland, the worldwide prevalence of obesity nearly tripled between 1975 and 2016, and it is estimated that by 2030 over 1 billion people globally will be living with obesity.

A Fitter Future For All 2012-2022 (AFFFA) is the current the strategic framework to reduce the harm related to overweight and obesity, it aimed to "empower the population of Northern Ireland to make health choices, reduce the risk of overweight and obesity-related diseases and improve health and wellbeing, by creating an environment that supports and promotes a physically active lifestyle and a healthy diet".

AFFFA has had a focus on outcomes across the life of the framework, with short, medium and long-term outcomes set and reviewed every 3 years – to align with anticipated budget periods. The latest set of short-term outcomes, covering 2019-2022 were agreed in October 2019. The framework, associated papers and progress reports are available at: <u>https://www.health-ni.gov.uk/articles/obesity-prevention</u>. There has been good progress in implementing AFFFA, but it has not met its overarching targets at the population level. While individual interventions have proved successful, they have either not been delivered within a wider systematic approach needed to create a supportive environment, have been impacted in terms of delivery and behavioural change by the COVID-19 pandemic, or they haven't been delivered at the scale required to have an impact.

In addition, the current strategy has been taken forward within the constraints of the wider 'obesogenic environment' that exists in our society. The term 'obesogenic environment' refers to the role environmental factors may play in determining both energy intake and expenditure. It has been defined as the 'sum of the influences that the surroundings, opportunities, or conditions of life have on promoting obesity in individuals and populations.' The term embraces the entire range of social, cultural and infrastructural conditions that influence an individual's ability to adopt a healthy lifestyle. For example, specific

6

environmental factors may shape the availability and consumption of different foods, or the levels of physical activity undertaken by populations, thus limiting choices.

In this context, and because of the wider impacts of this issue along with the case for change, co-production began on a refreshed strategic direction. To take this work forward, the Department of Health established an expert project board to advise on this work and to lead the co-production of a new strategy. The project board includes input from health professionals, academics, the community and voluntary sector, those living with obesity, and a range of other Government Departments.

The project board developed and agreed the overarching process to develop the new strategic framework and helped inform the development of a range of thematic co-production workshops to test the development of the strategy, advised on who should be involved, and developed a vision and principles for the work. The Department hosted seven virtual thematic workshops that had input from and engagement with all key sectors, and one overarching workshop on "whole system approaches".

The Healthy Futures consultation was the culmination of this work and was also supported and informed by two commissioned research projects and a 2-day Strategic Insight Lab on childhood obesity which examined the challenge question 'how can we create a society in which children grow up a healthy weight?'.

This report provides a detailed analysis and summary of the comments made in response to the Healthy Futures consultation questions. It also covers comments and views shared during consultation events, and those in formal consultation response submissions to the Department. All the views, comments and suggestions made during the consultation period have been considered by the Department.

Chapter 2: Public Consultation Process

The consultation was launched on 24 November 2023 and ran for 14 weeks until 1 March 2024. The Department was specifically consulting on the proposed vision, principles, population level outcomes, and thematic approach for the new strategic framework, as well as on a draft Equality Screening and a draft Rural Needs Impact Assessment. An Easy Read version of the draft strategic framework consultation document was also made available at https://www.health-ni.gov.uk/sites/default/files/consultations/health/doh-hf-conseasy-read.pdf.

All documentation was published on the Department's website (<u>https://www.health-ni.gov.uk/consultations/strategic-framework-prevent-harm-caused-by-obesity-and-improve-diets-and-levels-physical-activity</u>). The consultation document was available in alternative formats on request, through no such requests were made during the consultation period.

Views were sought on 18 questions covering the vision, principles, outcomes, and thematic approach for the new strategic framework. The questions are set out alongside an analysis of the responses in the next chapter and a composite list of the questions is also provided in Annex A.

Respondents could respond to the consultation via a number of routes:

- By completing the online questionnaire provided on the Northern Ireland Government Citizen Space website;
- By completing the MS Word response questionnaire and either posting or emailing to the Department;
- By submitting views and comments in an alternative format, e.g. an email, letter or free submission.

A number of consultation events were also held to support wider engagement and consultation with stakeholders. These events covered both the Healthy Futures consultation and a consultation on proposals for a Regional Obesity Management Service (ROMS) <u>https://www.health-ni.gov.uk/consultations/proposed-regional-obesity-management-service-roms-northern-ireland</u>, given the interlinkages between both consultations. All events were advertised on the Department's website and were open to all on a first come, first served basis. As places were limited (55 for virtual, 45 for in person), participants were asked to

register in advance to confirm their place. Events were scheduled for different times of the day, and the choice of attending virtual events or an in-person event gave stakeholders greater choice and flexibility.

Details of each consultation event is provided below:

Event	Date:	Time	Location	Attendees registered
1	22 January 2024	2:00pm – 4:00pm	Online	52
2	30 January 2024	10:00am – 12:00pm	Online	55
3	31 January 2024	7:30pm – 9:30pm	Online	55
4	6 February 2024	10:00am – 12:00pm	Seamus Heaney Homeplace, Bellaghy	34
Total:	·	·	·	196

Table 1: List of consultation engagement events

Each event included presentations on both Healthy Futures and ROMS. Attendees then had the opportunity to submit questions and comments to a panel of Departmental representatives for wider discussion.

Participants at the events represented a wide spectrum of interests including individuals with lived experience of obesity, health and social care professionals, policymakers, community and voluntary sector stakeholders and representatives from other organisations and groupings inclusive of professional bodies, political and private sector food industry representatives.

Departmental representatives also met with individual stakeholders and groups on request to present on or discuss the Healthy Futures consultation.

All views shared during public events and meetings were noted by the Department but not attributed to any individuals or organisations, to ensure stakeholders felt comfortable sharing their views in a public setting. These views have been invaluable and are reflected in the analysis in this report.

Chapter 3: Analysis

Overview

In addition to the views shared during the public consultation events and meetings with stakeholders during the consultation process, formal written responses to the consultation were provided in a variety of formats, including free submissions, email/hard copy response questionnaires, and via Citizenspace. In total, 111 written responses were received. Of those, 42 responses were submitted via email and a further 69 using the online Citizenspace questionnaire. A further breakdown is provided below:

	Email			Citizer	ispace
Organisations	41	98%		37	54%
Individuals	1	2%		32	46%
Total:	42	100%		69	100%

Table 2: Breakdown of consultation responses received

All responses were analysed quantitatively where respondents provided answers to the multiple-choice questions asked, and qualitatively using a discourse analysis methodology. The total number of questions asked was 40, split between 12 quantitative questions and 28 qualitative, narrative questions and sub questions. The quantitative analysis indicated overwhelming support for the proposed vision, principles, outcomes, and thematic approach for Health Futures.

Many of the respondents did not provide an answer to all 40 questions asked. The analysis that follows therefore provides an overview of the responses received, with the number of actual answers given for each question.

A selection of comments from respondents are also reproduced to illustrate points made; these are not intended to cover all responses, but rather to give a flavour of comments received.

Screening

Consultation Question 1 – Screening: Have you any comments on the Equality/Good Relations or Rural screening documents?

Of 111 consultation responses received, 27 had comments regarding the Equality/Good Relations or Rural screening documents published with the consultation document and questionnaire. Responses here highlight various challenges and inequalities faced by rural populations, particularly in accessing health services and addressing obesity. They call for a more nuanced understanding of these issues to ensure that policies are effective and equitable for all communities.

Responses discuss the disparities in health outcomes between rural and urban areas, emphasising the differences in transport accessibility, service availability, and health literacy. They highlight that many rural areas lack access to the same services as urban regions, particularly in relation to interpretation services and mental health support. Additionally, they stress the necessity of ensuring accessibility for adults with learning disabilities, addressing barriers related to technology, transportation, and service delivery methods.

Responses express support for the equality and good relations screening documents, noting the importance of considering specific groups, such as individuals with learning disabilities and rural residents, but also encourage policymakers to utilise current inequality screening tools to evaluate policies for their impact on existing inequalities. The positive impact of the strategic framework on Section 75 groups was endorsed, however the need for monitoring and evaluation of the policy's effectiveness was also emphasised.

Responses point out that while urban areas may have more access to fast food, rural areas face higher costs for essential food items, which can hinder healthy eating. They highlight the need for policies to consider these differences to avoid exacerbating existing inequalities.

There is a strong emphasis on the need to align language with weight stigma guidelines, advocating for the replacement of terms like "diet" with "eating habits" to promote a more positive narrative around health and obesity. They also note mental health issues and the

11

importance of addressing them in rural screenings, suggesting a comprehensive approach to health that includes mental well-being

"Depending upon what policies are impacted, I do think there may be a rural/urban difference in outcomes. For example, the built environment and opportunities to exercise and use active transport are different in rural and urban areas which may lead to differential impacts of policy." **Individual**

"Many rural areas cannot access the same services as urban areas. Transport accessibility in rural areas. Interpretation services may not be compatible with group-based programmes in relation to weight management / physical activity programmes." **NHSCT - Health and Wellbeing Team**

"The Royal College of Nursing [RCN] endorses in general terms the assertion on page 4 of the equality screening, disability duties and human rights assessment that the strategic framework will have a positive impact on Section 75 groups. We note that each associated legislative action will be screened appropriately before being completed" **Royal College of Nursing (RCN)**

Other respondents noted that they were "broadly supportive of the conclusions of the equality and good relations screening, and rural screening documents with regards to this policy as a population-level measure".

Consultation Question 2 – Screening: Are there any areas or issues you feel we should be considering in future Equality/Good Relations or Rural screenings?

15 respondents felt that there were other areas or issues that should be considered in future Equality/Good Relations or Rural screenings. Issues such as the different conditions which exist between urban and rural areas, such as access to supermarkets, take away food, opportunities for physical activity and active travel should form part of any future screening. Again, health literacy, language/translation barriers and the general access to

services for people living with disabilities or poor mental health were highlighted as issue to consider in future screenings.

Responders again discuss the disparities in access to health services and healthy food options between rural and urban areas, highlighting the challenges faced by vulnerable populations, particularly children and families in poverty. They emphasise the importance of health literacy and the need for population health approaches that consider social determinants of health and advocate for a human rights approach in policy development, particularly regarding children's rights to adequate nutrition and healthy environments, urging policymakers to prioritise these issues in their strategies.

Additionally, the responses address the complexities of obesity and its interaction with various socio-economic factors, including disability, race, and access to transportation. It points out that financial constraints often lead families to opt for less nutritious food options, and the time limitations faced by working parents which further complicate the preparation of healthy meals.

Responders discuss several key issues related to health and well-being, again particularly focusing on the disparities between rural and urban areas. They highlight the impact of preexisting conditions, such as the availability of supermarkets and opportunities for physical activity, on health outcomes. Health literacy is again identified as a barrier to accessing services, and mental health treatment access is noted as a significant concern in rural regions.

They advocate for a human rights approach in policy development, especially for vulnerable populations like children, referencing the Convention on the Rights of Children, emphasising the importance of creating healthy food environments and encourages policymakers to consider children's rights in consultations and strategy development.

Additionally, the concept of Child Friendly Cities was mentioned, which prioritises children's rights and community needs in local governance. Responders call for the inclusion of children's voices in policy discussions and highlights the role of resources such as the Belfast Healthy Cities program in promoting public health and community engagement.

Finally, they stress the need for future screenings to consider the differential impacts of obesity-related measures across various demographics, including urban versus rural

13

settings and other inequalities related to disability, race, and socioeconomic status, highlighting the need for equitable access to health services, particularly for those with language barriers, and stressing the importance of addressing these inequalities to ensure that all populations receive adequate support.

"Policymakers should consider a human rights approach to strategy development, especially regarding vulnerable populations such as children. The Convention on the Rights of Children recognises that children have the right to adequate nutrition, non-discrimination, healthy foods and right to consider children's best interest in any matter that influences them (Canamare-Sanchez, 2019)." **Belfast Healthy Cities**

"Given the complex range of factors influencing obesity, many of which can interact with section 75 characteristics, we believe that future screenings should closely consider whether the prioritisation of measures within this strategy could give rise to differential impacts" **Developing Healthy Communities NI**

It was also recommended that there should be monitoring of the differences in impact between urban and rural areas, as some aspects may be more easily accessed in one of these settings compared with the other.

Vision

The overall vision for this new strategic framework is to "create the conditions in Northern Ireland which enable and support people to improve their diet and participate in more physical activity, and reduce the risk of related harm for those living with overweight and obesity".

Consultation Question 3 – Vision: Do you agree with this vision?

A majority (99%) of 102 respondents agreed with the vision proposed for the Healthy Futures strategic framework. The graphs below show the breakdown of responses:



Figure 1: Breakdown of responses to the overall vision for the new strategic framework

Strongly Agree	Agree	Disagree	Strongly Disagree		N/A or Not Answered		Total Disagree	% Agree	% Disagree
67	34	1	0	102	9	101	1	99.0%	1.0%

Table 3: Q3: Vision. Breakdown of responses

In their narrative responses (67 respondents) to Question 3, answerers presented a comprehensive critique of the current approach to obesity prevention in Northern Ireland, emphasising the need for a multi-disciplinary and holistic strategy and highlighting that a review of health strategies is needed due to the current health crisis in Northern Ireland.

Key arguments put forward by respondees include:

 Individual Focus vs. Systemic Change: Many respondents argue against placing excessive responsibility on individuals to improve their diets, highlighting the importance of addressing broader environmental and systemic factors that contribute to obesity.

- Chronic Disease Perspective: Responses advocate for treating obesity as a chronic disease that requires ongoing support and intervention from healthcare providers, particularly GPs.
- Holistic Approach: The need for a more integrated approach that considers mental health alongside physical health is emphasised, particularly in relation to eating disorders.
- Community and Environmental Factors: Responders stress the significance of social determinants such as deprivation and access to healthy food, suggesting that effective policies should focus on creating supportive environments rather than solely relying on individual behaviour change.
- Language and Messaging: There is a call for more positive and inclusive language in health messaging, moving away from stigmatising terms and focusing on supportive phrases that encourage healthy behaviours.
- Need for Collaboration: Responses underscore the importance of collaboration among various stakeholders, including healthcare professionals, community organisations, and the food industry, to effectively tackle obesity.
- Equity and Access: Answers stress the necessity of ensuring equitable access to resources and support for marginalised groups facing health inequalities.

Overall, the arguments advocate for a comprehensive, supportive, and community-oriented approach to obesity prevention that recognises the complexity of the issue and the need for systemic change. The focus should shift from individual behaviour to systemic changes that foster healthier lifestyles for everyone.

"A multi-disciplinary approach must be taken that includes GPs as the primary patient contact, treating obesity as a chronic disease that requires positive intervention and support from the NHS in Northern Ireland." Individual

"The vision is clear, but it does focus heavily on physical activity and diet rather than also considering the wider obesogenic system that is discussed within the narrative of the consultation document." **Ards and North Down Borough Council** "It is imperative that intervention is made to support people having a healthy diet and exercise early on so that severe disease can be prevented, ultimately saving costs at a later stage." **Individual**

Principles

The project board proposed a range of principles for the development and implementation of the new strategic framework, these are: taking whole system approach with the framework being health led but not solely health owned, taking a life course approach and targeting or prioritising certain groups, focusing on reducing inequalities, acknowledging the alignment with other policy areas and not duplicating effort, being outcome-based, and that the framework will provide an umbrella for actions to prevent and address overweight and obesity.

Consultation Question 4 – Principles: Do you agree with these principles?

Again, a majority (99%) of 96 respondents agreed with the principles proposed for the Healthy Futures strategic framework. The graphs below show the breakdown of responses:



Figure 2: Breakdown of responses to the development and implementation principles

Strongly Agree	Agree	Disagree	Strongly Disagree	Total answered	N/A or Not Answered	Total Agree	Total Disagree	% Agree	% Disagree
63	32	1	0	96	15	95	1	99.0%	1.0%

Table 4: Q4 - Principles. Breakdown of responses

In their narrative responses (65 respondents) to Question 4, answerers emphasise the importance of a comprehensive, patient-centred approach to addressing obesity as a chronic condition. Key arguments put forward by respondees include:

 Patient-Centred Care: The need for obesity management to focus on improving health outcomes, social participation, and addressing the root causes of obesity rather than solely on weight loss.

- Access to Treatment: Highlighting the necessity for equitable access to obesity management medications and services, particularly for marginalised groups.
- Education and Training: The importance of educating healthcare professionals to eliminate weight bias and stigma, and to enhance their skills in evidence-based obesity management.
- Community-Based Programs: Advocating for the continuation and expansion of successful community-based weight management programs, such as "Choose to Lose," and the need for new initiatives to address gaps in knowledge about healthy eating.
- Whole Systems Approach: The strategy should integrate various sectors, including education, health, and community services, to create supportive environments for healthy living.
- Focus on Inequalities: Addressing health inequalities, particularly among disadvantaged populations, and ensuring that interventions are accessible to all, including those with disabilities.
- Evidence-Based Policies: The necessity for policies to be grounded in robust evidence and to monitor outcomes effectively to ensure accountability and effectiveness.
- Collaboration Across Sectors: Encouraging collaboration between different agencies and sectors to create a cohesive strategy that addresses the multifaceted nature of obesity.
- Cultural Sensitivity: The need for culturally tailored interventions and awareness campaigns to effectively reach diverse communities.
- Long-Term Commitment: Emphasising the importance of sustained investment and commitment to prevention and treatment strategies to combat obesity effectively.

Overall, responders advocate for a holistic, inclusive, and evidence-based approach to tackling obesity, recognising it as a complex public health issue that requires coordinated efforts across multiple sectors.

"The chronic condition of obesity is characterised by excess or dysfunctional adiposity that can have negative impacts on health. It's a complex condition that requires a patient-centred approach to improve health outcomes and increase social and economic participation." Freelance Dietitians Group Northern Ireland

"We strongly agree with the principles outlined and hope to see attention given to reducing inequalities, focusing on not only high-risk groups but also those often left behind." **Belfast Healthy Cities**

"Education and training are needed for all healthcare professionals to address the gap in skills, increase knowledge of evidence-based practice and eliminate weight bias and stigma." **Southern Health and Social Care Trust**

Population Level Outcomes

This strategic framework focuses on four main long-term population level outcomes across the life course: Reducing the percentage of people in Northern Ireland who are living with overweight and/or obesity; Improving the population's diet and nutrition; Increasing the percentage of the population who participate in regular physical activity; and Reducing the prevalence of overweight and obesity-related Non-Communicable Diseases (NCDs).

Consultation Question 5 – Outcomes: Do you agree with these 4 population level outcomes?

Again, a large majority (91%) of 99 respondents agreed with the four population level outcomes proposed for the Healthy Futures strategic framework. The graphs below show the breakdown of responses:



Figure 3: Breakdown of responses - long-term population level outcomes across the life course

Strongly Agree	Agree	Disagree	Strongly Disagree	Total answered	N/A or Not Answered	Total Agree	Total Disagree	% Agree	% Disagree
52	38	8	1	99	12	90	9	90.9%	9.1%

Table 5: Q5 - Outcomes. Breakdown of responses

In their narrative responses (69 respondents) to Question 5, answerers discuss the need for a comprehensive approach to improving health outcomes in Northern Ireland, particularly regarding obesity and related non-communicable diseases (NCDs). Key arguments put forward by respondees include:

- Holistic Health Approach: Emphasises the importance of improving diet quality, physical activity, and addressing mental health as interconnected factors influencing obesity.
- Data Collection and Measurement: Highlights the necessity for robust data collection to track progress, including paediatric obesity data and socio-economic health inequalities.
- Community and Environmental Factors: Stresses the role of community engagement, access to healthy food, and the built environment in promoting healthier lifestyles.
- Education and Empowerment: Advocates for educational initiatives to empower individuals to make healthier choices and understand the impact of their behaviours on health.
- Policy and Infrastructure: Calls for policy changes and infrastructure investments to support active travel and reduce reliance on unhealthy food options, while also addressing the marketing of unhealthy foods.
- Focus on Inequalities: The need for a targeted approach to address health disparities, particularly in deprived areas, and to ensure that interventions are equitable.
- Collaboration Across Sectors: Encourages collaboration between government, community organisations, and the food industry to create supportive environments for health improvement.
- Outcome Measurement: Suggests that outcomes should be specific, measurable, and include indicators beyond weight, such as mental well-being and quality of life.

Overall, the text advocates for a multi-faceted strategy that integrates various health determinants to effectively combat obesity and improve public health in Northern Ireland.

"A more comprehensive approach is needed to fully recognise the positive impacts of reduced sedentary behaviour, decreased screen time, and the development of new skills, such as confidence in reading food labels and changing shopping and cooking habits." **Individual** "It is important to shift away from a restricted 'dieting' mentality and calorie counting, which can ultimately lead to reduced nutrition quality and other health issues." **Freelance Dietitians Group Northern Ireland**

"The outcomes should also include a governance framework across each of the departments and outline what they will be responsible for delivering. **Cancer Focus Northern Ireland** "

Themes

The strategic framework takes a thematic approach to the issues focusing on four key themes: Healthy Policies, Healthy Places, Healthy People, and Collaboration and A Whole System Approach.

Consultation Question 6 – Thematic Approach: Are all the key areas covered within this thematic approach?

Here, a large majority (90%) of 94 respondents agreed with the thematic approach proposed for the Healthy Futures strategic framework. The graphs below show the breakdown of responses:



Figure 4: Breakdown of responses to the key areas covered within the thematic approach

Strongly Agree	Agree	Disagree	Strongly Disagree		N/A or Not Answered		Total Disagree	% Agree	% Disagree
0	85	9	0	94	17	85	9	90.4%	9.6%

Table 6: Q6 - Thematic Approach. Breakdown of responses

In their narrative responses (58 respondents) to Question 6, answerers presented a comprehensive analysis of the themes and the proposed Whole Systems Approach (WSA) to tackle obesity and improve health outcomes in Northern Ireland. Key arguments put forward by respondees include:

 Objective Addition: Emphasising the need to add an objective focused on increasing life span, which could also enhance work span and address the challenges posed by an aging population.

- Inclusivity Across Ages: Highlighting the importance of considering health strategies for all age groups, particularly those under 19, who are often excluded from current strategies, as well as including an objective focused on increasing health span, which could also enhance work span and address the challenges posed by an aging population.
- Role of Registered Dietitians: Stressing the necessity of involving HCPC Registered Dietitians at all tiers of the thematic approach, not just at Tier 3, to provide evidencebased nutrition information and personalised dietary advice.
- Whole Systems Approach: Supporting the idea that a comprehensive approach, backed by adequate resources, can effectively address obesity, moving beyond simplistic messages of eating less and exercising more.
- Funding for Healthy Places: Advocating for funding to ensure access to nutritious food in schools, preschools, and community settings, while also addressing cultural needs in food access.
- Governance and Accountability: Calling for clear lines of responsibility, specific actions, and measurable outcomes within the thematic approach to ensure effective implementation.
- Health Inequalities: Emphasising the need to address health inequalities, particularly for vulnerable populations, and suggesting that each theme should include measurable commitments to support those most at risk.
- Food Poverty: Highlighting food poverty as a public health emergency and advocating for a rights-based approach to food security, including the need for adequate funding for community initiatives.
- Collaboration and Community Involvement: Stressing the importance of collaboration across sectors and involving community pharmacies and local councils in delivering health initiatives.

Overall, the arguments advocate for a multi-faceted, inclusive, and well-resourced approach to health and obesity prevention, with a strong emphasis on collaboration, clarity, and addressing inequalities. "A WSA is a valuable tool, but it faces challenges in overcoming the abundance of conflicting and often inaccurate nutrition information from unregistered sources." **Individual**

"The thematic approach does not include clear lines of responsibility or specific actions or outcomes, particularly in relation to how different activities will be measured or to what extent they should be implemented." Beat

"We strongly welcome the whole system approach to addressing obesity and supporting people to achieve a healthy weight." **Versus Arthritis**

Healthy Policies

Our ability to eat a healthy diet, participate in physical activity, and to maintain a weight that is good for our health, is very much influenced by the wider environment in which we live our lives. This theme focuses on the strategies, policies, regulations and stakeholders that control the wider food and physical environment, therefore playing a key role in addressing the obesogenic environment.

Consultation Question 7 – Healthy Policies: Do you agree with this theme and what it is seeking to achieve?

Here, 100% of 93 respondents agreed with the Healthy Policies theme, and what it is seeking to achieve, proposed for the Healthy Futures strategic framework, broken down by 62 responders strongly agreeing and 38 agreeing. The graphs below show the breakdown of responses:



Figure 5: Breakdown of responses to the Healthy Policies theme

Strongly Agree	Agree	Disagree	Strongly Disagree	Total answered	N/A or Not Answered	Total Agree	Total Disagree	% Agree	% Disagree
62	31	0	0	93	18	93	0	100.0%	0.0%

Table 7: Q7 - Healthy Policies. Breakdown of responses

In their narrative responses (72 respondents) to Question 7, answerers emphasise the need for a comprehensive approach to address health inequalities and improve the overall well-being of the Northern Ireland population. Key arguments put forward by respondees include:

- Environmental and Familial Influences: The wider environment, familial habits, and beliefs must be challenged to dispel myths about healthy eating and promote behaviour changes.
- Housing and Accessibility: Ensuring rental homes are equipped with essential appliances like ovens and fridges is crucial for supporting healthy eating. Accessibility to food and physical activity is also highlighted, with a focus on affordability and public transport.
- Education and Support: Investment in community nutrition education programs is essential. Programs like Food & Health Essentials have shown effectiveness in addressing health inequalities.
- Collaboration Across Sectors: There is a call for integration with other government departments to tackle obesity, emphasising the need for a coordinated approach across various sectors.
- Policy Recommendations: Responses advocate for mandatory nutrition standards in healthcare settings, guidelines for healthier food options in outlets, and the importance of environmental health officers in promoting health messages.
- Addressing Obesogenic Environments: The need for policies that promote nutritious food in schools and community venues is stressed, along with the importance of addressing the marketing of unhealthy foods.
- Long-term Funding: The challenge of short-term funding for long-term issues was raised, advocating for sustainable financial support for nutrition initiatives.
- Behavioural Change: It highlights the importance of addressing the psychological and social factors influencing dietary choices, advocating for a broader range of strategies beyond education alone.
- Inclusivity in Health Strategies: The need for inclusive health policies that consider the diverse needs of the population, including those with disabilities, is emphasised.
- Public Health Messaging: Responses call for clear public health messages that promote healthy eating and physical activity, alongside addressing the commercial determinants of health.

Overall, the arguments advocate for a multi-faceted approach to improve health outcomes through education, policy changes, and community involvement.

"Affordability is key - accessible times and accessible locations are essential to support healthy eating habits." **Northern Health & Social Care Trust**

"It is important to implement policies promoting nutritious food in schools, youth clubs, sports events, and other community venues." Freelance Dietitians Group Northern Ireland

"The design of the physical environment is increasingly important, and we need to encourage more active travel to improve people's health." **Ards and North Down Borough Council**

Consultation Question 8 – Healthy Policies: Do you agree with these priorities?

A majority (99%) of 91 respondents agreed with the priorities suggested for the Healthy Policies theme. The graphs below show the breakdown of responses:





Strongly Agree	Agree	Disagree	Strongly Disagree	Total answered	N/A or Not Answered	Total Agree	Total Disagree	% Agree	% Disagree
52	38	1	0	91	20	90	1	98.9%	1.1%

Table 8: Q8 - Healthy Policies: Priorities. Breakdown of responses

The consultation sought narrative responses to the following groups of suggested Healthy Policies priorities:

- Food environment priorities
- Food labelling and information priorities
- Heathier food options priorities
- Physical activity and active travel priorities

Respondents were free to provide free-text responses for each of these priorities and the responses are summarised in the following paragraphs.

Food environment priorities

In their narrative responses (66 respondents) to Question 8: Food environment priorities, answerers emphasise the importance of promoting whole foods, particularly fruits and vegetables, while addressing the negative influence of the processed food. It highlights the need for legislation to regulate marketing and advertising of unhealthy foods, particularly around schools, and advocates for the implementation of nutritional standards across food outlets. Responses also call for better food labelling to help consumers make informed choices and suggests that education on healthy eating should be prioritised.

Key arguments put forward by respondees include:

- Food Environment: The current food environment is heavily influenced by unhealthy options, calling for restrictions on fast-food outlets and better planning policies.
- Legislation and Regulation: There is a need for stricter regulations on marketing unhealthy foods, especially to children, and for clearer food labelling to aid consumer understanding.
- Healthier Options: Responses advocate for making healthier food options more affordable and accessible, particularly for low-income families, and suggest that supermarkets should promote healthier choices.
- Public Health Initiatives: Responses stress the importance of public health campaigns to educate consumers about nutrition and the impact of food choices on health.
- Collaboration: Responses encourage collaboration with local and national stakeholders to enhance the affordability and accessibility of healthier food options, while also considering the needs of vulnerable populations.

Overall, the text argues for a comprehensive approach to improving the food environment, focusing on legislation, education, and collaboration to promote healthier eating habits and reduce rates of obesity.

"The marketing of poor food choices to children is a direct threat to public health as it influences children's food choices, adults purchasing, and overall dietary intake." **Belfast Healthy Cities**

"The prevalence of fast-food takeaways across Northern Ireland is a cause for concern, especially within the radius of schools." **British Dental Association**

"The provision of a supportive and enabling food environment needs many strands to be addressed and structured in favour of health – planning and land use; food taxes, subsidies, and fiscal measures; marketing; reformulation; nutritional standards." **safefood**

Food labelling and information priorities

In their narrative responses (65 respondents) to Question 8: Food labelling and information priorities, answerers discuss the need for improved food labelling practices to enhance consumer understanding and promote healthier choices. Key arguments put forward by respondees include:

- Ineffectiveness of Current Systems: some felt the traffic light labelling system can be being misleading, as foods labelled as healthy (green) can be unhealthy, and vice versa. There is a call for a more standardised and simplified labelling approach.
- Education and Training: There is a strong emphasis on the need for public education regarding food labels, including how to interpret them and make informed choices. This education should be integrated into school curriculums.
- Regulation and Consistency: Responses advocate for stricter regulations on food labelling across the UK to ensure consistency and clarity, particularly for small

businesses. They highlight the importance of aligning labelling standards with those in Ireland and the EU.

- Impact on Health: Concerns are raised about how calorie labelling may affect individuals with eating disorders, suggesting that any changes should be made cautiously and with input from relevant stakeholders.
- Consumer Behaviour: Responses note that many consumers struggle to understand food labels, which can lead to poor dietary choices. A health promotion campaign is recommended to address this issue.
- Focus on Whole Foods: There is a call for labelling that distinguishes between ultraprocessed foods and whole foods, with the latter receiving a healthier designation.
- Visual Clarity: Suggestions include using larger text and clearer graphics on labels to improve readability, especially for individuals with learning disabilities or low literacy.
- Legislative Support: The need for legislative backing to enforce better labelling practices and ensure compliance among food manufacturers is highlighted.

Overall, responses advocate for a comprehensive approach to food labelling that prioritises consumer education, regulatory consistency, and clarity to support healthier eating habits.

"Food labelling needs to be streamlined and simpler, ensuring that it is clear and easy to understand for all consumers." **NHSCT - Health and Wellbeing Team**

"Many people struggle to understand food labelling and how to use it to make informed food choices. A health promotion campaign should be developed to address this issue." **Freelance Dietitians Group Northern** *Ireland*

"We strongly suggest any nutrition labelling and packaging schemes should be strictly consistent across all four nations of the UK to ensure clarity and fairness in the market." **Néstle UK Ltd**

Heathier food options priorities

In their narrative responses (67 respondents) to Question 8 Heathier food options priorities, answerers discuss several key arguments regarding the promotion of healthier food options and the challenges associated with food affordability and accessibility.

- Increasing Access to Healthy Foods: There is a strong emphasis on enhancing opportunities for communities, schools, and workplaces to grow their own vegetables and fruits, which can help reduce reliance on expensive store-bought options.
- Affordability of Healthy Foods: Responses highlight the rising costs of healthy food and suggests that staple items like milk and bread should be capped in price, with subsidies provided to offset increases. It argues that healthy food should not be a luxury and proposes taxing unhealthy foods to fund subsidies for healthier options.
- Education and Awareness: There is a call for increased education around healthy eating, particularly in schools, to equip children and parents with the knowledge to make healthier choices. Practical cooking lessons and initiatives like the Causeway Coast and Glens Healthy Kids project are mentioned as beneficial.
- Nutritional Standards: Responses advocate for the full implementation of nutritional standards across all Health and Social Care (HSC) trusts and catering facilities, suggesting that these standards should be mandatory and monitored.
- Food Environment: Responses discuss the need for better food environments, particularly near schools, to limit the availability of unhealthy food options. It suggests that local councils should influence food options through planning decisions.
- Support for Local Food Businesses: There is a recognition of the importance of supporting local food businesses to develop healthier options and utilise local produce, which can contribute to a more sustainable food system.
- Reformulation and Innovation: Responses stress the need for food manufacturers to reformulate products to reduce unhealthy ingredients while increasing the availability of healthier options. They also call for collaboration between the government and the food industry to achieve these goals.
- Addressing Inequalities: Responses highlight the disparities in access to healthy food, particularly in deprived areas, and stresses the importance of addressing these inequalities to ensure that everyone can access affordable, nutritious food.

Overall, the arguments made advocate for a comprehensive approach to improving food environments, enhancing education, and ensuring that healthy food options are accessible and affordable for all communities.

"Food affordability is key, but how can you increase affordability when the cost of all food is continually increasing?" **Northern Health & Social Care Trust**

"The Nutrition Standards in HSC should be fully implemented by all HSC Trusts and applied to all catering facilities in NI, especially in leisure facilities." **Southern Health and Social Care Trust**

"The key to this priority is two-fold: reducing the availability and promotion for unhealthy food products and increasing the price of unhealthy food products." **safefood**

Physical activity and active travel priorities

In their narrative responses (69 respondents) to Question 8 Physical activity and active travel priorities, answerers discuss the challenges and opportunities related to physical activity and active travel in Northern Ireland. Key arguments put forward by respondees include:

- Barriers to Participation: Caring duties, financial constraints, and limited access to safe routes hinder participation in physical activities, especially in rural areas. There is a need for affordable and inclusive options tailored to various demographics, including those with disabilities and older adults.
- Education and Awareness: Reponses stress the importance of food choices and education around healthy lifestyles as crucial for weight management and overall health. Programs should promote understanding of how to integrate physical activity into daily life without the need for gym memberships.

- Access to Facilities: There is a call for increased investment in community facilities, such as leisure centres and safe play spaces, particularly in deprived areas. The need for more affordable options and community-based activity programs is highlighted.
- Active Travel Initiatives: Reponses advocate for improved infrastructure to support active travel, such as dedicated cycle lanes and safe walking paths. They stress the importance of integrating active travel into urban planning to promote healthier lifestyles.
- Health Equity: A call for attention to be given to health inequalities, ensuring that vulnerable groups have access to physical activity opportunities. Policies should consider the unique barriers faced by different populations, including rural communities and those with disabilities.
- Community Engagement: The need for engagement with community members and stakeholders is essential for developing effective strategies that meet local needs.
 Policymakers are encouraged to collaborate with various sectors to enhance access to green spaces and promote active travel.
- Long-term Investment: A view that sustained investment in active travel and physical activity infrastructure is necessary to create lasting change. Responses call for a holistic approach that includes collaboration across government departments and local councils.
- Childhood Activity: The importance of play and physical activity in childhood was highlighted, with a recommendation for schools to incorporate more physical activity into the curriculum to combat childhood obesity.

Overall, the content advocates for a comprehensive strategy that addresses barriers to physical activity, promotes health equity, and encourages community involvement in creating supportive environments for active living.

"The ability to do this may be compromised by caring duties, highlighting the need for more accessible options for physical activity that accommodate both caregivers and those they support." **NHSCT** "Health promotion has limited media coverage; therefore, finding innovative ways to increase visibility through social media, television, and radio is essential." **Individual**

"Improving access to green space, especially in the most deprived areas, has been shown to enhance heart rate, cholesterol, and blood pressure, underscoring the importance of equitable access to these resources." Belfast Healthy Cities

Consultation Question 9 – Healthy Policies: Is there anything missing that is likely to have a positive impact on this theme and what it is trying to achieve?

In their narrative responses (57 respondents) to Consultation Question 9 – Healthy Policies, answerers highlight the significant role of the leisure sector in promoting physical activity and the necessity for comprehensive planning and delivery of health services. They stress the importance of public education on healthy eating and exercise, particularly for people living with obesity who require accessible support programs. They advocate for a focus on prevention and early intervention, addressing affordability and accessibility, and empowering individuals while combating the stigma associated with obesity.

They underscore the need for a constructive approach to health policies, prioritising wellbeing and investment in personal health. They call for the inclusion of mental health considerations in obesity strategies, the importance of engaging children in policy development, and the necessity for clear communication regarding health impacts.

Furthermore, they discuss the commercial determinants of health, advocating for regulations on unhealthy food marketing and the promotion of healthy food options. Responses also reference the WHO's Global Action Plan for Physical Activity, urging policymakers to align local strategies with its objectives.

The need for improved access to green spaces, community engagement in health initiatives, and the importance of addressing social inequalities in health outcomes are also highlighted. A holistic approach to health policies is called for, emphasising the integration
of various sectors and the importance of community involvement in shaping health strategies.

"It is imperative to consider a constructive approach rather than a dictatorial one. By investing in simple steps, we can achieve lifelong benefits." *Freelance Dietitians Group Northern Ireland*

"Engagement is at the heart of shaping places that help to improve children's health and wellbeing." **Belfast Healthy Cities**

"It is widely accepted that the best form of healthcare is preventative and intervention at the earliest point of a condition." **Sinn Féin**

Grouping responses by sector suggests that the academic sector supports healthy policies aimed at reducing childhood obesity and promoting public health through measures like banning unhealthy food advertising and introducing calorie labelling. Research indicates strong public backing for these initiatives, suggesting they could be well-received.

Proponents of healthy policies in the food industry argue that advertising restrictions on high-fat, sugar, and salt foods are necessary to combat obesity and promote healthier choices. The sector emphasises the need for clear guidance from the government to help businesses comply with any new regulations. Conversely, critics question the effectiveness of these measures, citing limited evidence of their impact on rates of obesity and expressing concerns about the economic burden on small businesses, particularly during a cost-of-living crisis.

The dietetics and nutrition sector advocate for actionable initiatives to improve public health, including reformulating food products and enhancing food labelling. While these policies aim to empower consumers and promote healthier choices, there are concerns about their accessibility for marginalised groups, such as individuals with disabilities and those from lower-income backgrounds. The effectiveness of these policies hinges on their implementation and the ability to adapt to diverse community needs, highlighting the importance of addressing health disparities.

37

The discussion from the health sector on Healthy Policies reveals a strong advocacy for meaningful engagement with the food industry to establish healthier portion sizes and improve food labelling, particularly for baby/infant foods. Advocates emphasise the need for affordable and accessible healthy food options, alongside public awareness campaigns to restrict unhealthy food advertising. They argue that increased investment in physical activity opportunities is essential for promoting health. However, critical responses raise concerns about the actual powers of the Department of Health to implement these changes, the potential negative impact of calorie labelling on individuals with eating disorders, and the risk that promoting physical activity alone may not effectively address food accessibility and affordability issues. This creates a complex landscape where the need for reform is clear, but the challenges of implementation and potential unintended consequences remain significant.

Healthy Places

At all ages, we can spend a significant portion of our lives in places and settings that influence our ability or inability to eat healthily, be physically active and to manage our weight. This can be through a lack of access to opportunities, barriers to participation and lack of availability. However, settings can also play a positive role in supporting the health and wellbeing of the people who access them. This theme focuses on creating supportive places and settings.

Consultation Question 10 – Healthy Places: Do you agree with this theme and what it is seeking to achieve?

Here, 100% of 93 respondents agreed with the Healthy Places theme, and what it is seeking to achieve, proposed for the Healthy Futures strategic framework, broken down by 62 responders strongly agreeing and 38 agreeing. The graphs below show the breakdown of responses:



Figure 7: Breakdown of responses to the Healthy Places theme

Strongly Agree	Agree	Disagree	Strongly Disagree	Total answered	N/A or Not Answered	Total Agree	Total Disagree	% Agree	% Disagree
62	31	0	0	93	18	93	0	100.0%	0.0%

Table 9: Q10 - Healthy Places. Breakdown of responses

In their narrative responses (56 respondents) to Question 10, answerers discuss the significant influence of settings on health choices, highlighting the need for healthy environments in schools, workplaces, and communities. They underscore the importance of reviewing school menus, providing healthier food options, and ensuring access to physical activity programs. Response advocate for built environments that promote health, such as

safe streets and green spaces, and stress the impact of socio-economic status on health outcomes.

Responses call for inclusive approaches that consider mental health and disabilities, and they emphasise the role of community resources in promoting healthy lifestyles. They also point out the necessity of strong governance and funding structures to support health initiatives, particularly for vulnerable populations. They suggest that all settings, including homes and informal education, should be recognised as vital for fostering healthy behaviours. Overall, responses advocate for a comprehensive, multi-faceted approach to creating healthier places that support well-being across the life course.

"Creating healthy places through supportive places and settings will be essential to achieving the desired outcomes." **Ards and North Down Borough Council**

"A healthy city creates an accessible social, physical, and cultural environment that facilitates the pursuit of health and wellbeing." **Developing Healthy Communities NI**

" Employers can and should do more to create a healthy working environment that allows people to be active, is ergonomic, encourages people to take regular breaks and move around." **Versus Arthritis**

Consultation Question 11 – Healthy Places: Do you agree with these priorities?

An overwhelming majority (99%) of 83 respondents agreed with the priorities suggested for the Healthy Places theme. The graphs below show the breakdown of responses:



Figure 8: Breakdown of responses to the priorities for the Healthy Places theme

Strongly Agree	Agree	Disagree	Strongly Disagree	Total answered	N/A or Not Answered	Total Agree	Total Disagree	% Agree	% Disagree
52	30	1	0	83	28	82	1	98.8%	1.2%

Table 10: Q11 - Healthy Places: Priorities. Breakdown of responses

The consultation sought narrative responses to the following groups of suggested Healthy Places priorities:

- Early years settings priorities
- School settings priorities
- College, university, and workplace settings priorities
- Healthcare settings priorities
- Local government and community settings priorities

Respondents were free to provide free-text responses for each of these priorities and the responses are summarised in the following paragraphs.

Early years settings priorities

In their narrative responses (58 respondents) to Question 11 Early years settings priorities, answerers highlight the importance of promoting breastfeeding and healthy eating in early years settings to combat childhood obesity and ensure long-term health benefits. Key points put forward by respondees include:

• Early Intervention: The need to focus on nutrition and physical activity in early childhood is crucial for establishing lifelong healthy habits.

- Role of Early Years Settings: Views that these settings should have mandatory health eating policies, be monitored for compliance, and provide education on healthy food choices.
- Collaboration Across Sectors: Consensus on the need for cross-departmental cooperation to address childhood obesity effectively, including integrating nutrition education into various settings like schools, colleges, and community programs.
- Training and Resources: Responses suggest that early years practitioners require training on nutrition and eating disorders, and resources must be allocated to support healthy eating initiatives.
- Community Engagement: The benefit of involving families and communities in nutrition education and promoting physical activity through play is essential for fostering a healthy environment for children.
- Addressing Health Inequalities: Strategies must consider diverse needs and aim to reduce health disparities, particularly in underprivileged areas.
- Long-term Commitment: Highlighting that sustainable changes require ongoing support, funding, and the establishment of standards rather than just guidelines for nutrition in early years settings.

Overall, responses here advocate for a comprehensive approach to early childhood nutrition and physical activity, highlighting the need for structured policies, community involvement, and professional training to create a healthier future for children.

> "Promoting breastfeeding and reducing consumption of processed children's food is crucial for the future health of children." **Individual**

"The earlier nutrition and physical activity are embedded in a person's development, the more likely these become second nature." **Ards and North Down Borough Council**

"Opportunities to be active in childhood and youth, through either play or sports, enhance the potential for individuals to remain active throughout their lives." **PlayBoard NI**

School settings priorities

In their narrative responses (67 respondents) to Question 11 School settings priorities, answerers highlight the importance of improving school meals and integrating education about cooking and nutrition into the curriculum. They argue that schools should prioritise the health and well-being of children by creating supportive environments that promote healthy eating and physical activity. Key points put forward by respondees include:

- Educational Focus: A view that schools face challenges in balancing educational priorities with health initiatives, necessitating support from external sources to enhance children's health and learning environments.
- Healthy Meal Policies: The need to review of school dinner and packed lunches policies is essential, with a focus on providing nutritious options and ensuring that physical education is a core component of the curriculum.
- Community Involvement: The benefits of schools acting as community hubs, engaging families and utilising existing nutrition programs to promote healthy eating habits.
- Physical Activity: How initiatives like the Daily Mile and other physical activities could be embedded within the school day to encourage active lifestyles among students.
- Nutrition Education: There is a call for comprehensive food education that includes understanding food labelling, cooking skills, and the nutritional value of meals, which can help combat obesity and promote healthier choices.
- Support for Vulnerable Groups: Highlighting that special attention should be given to children with additional needs to ensure their participation in physical activities and access to healthy meals.
- Long-term Commitment: A belief that sustainable changes require permanent roles, such as Food in Schools coordinators, and adequate funding to ensure schools can provide varied and nutritious meals.
- Whole-School Approach: The requirement for a holistic strategy that integrates health education, physical activity, and nutrition across all school activities is crucial for fostering a culture of health and well-being among students.

Overall, responses argue for a systemic approach to enhance children's health through improved school meals, education, physical activity, and community engagement.

"Improving school meals and education about cooking and preparing food is key to ensuring the health and wellbeing of children." **Individual**

"Health promotion should be included more in the curriculum, where looking after our health includes weight management." **NHSCT**

"Healthy eating and physical activity should be embedded as part of the essential curriculum [...] as they are as important for learning as maths and English." **Ards and North Down Borough Council**

College, university, and workplace settings priorities

In their narrative responses (55 respondents) to Question 11 College, university, and workplace settings priorities, answerers discuss the challenges and opportunities related to promoting healthy eating and active lifestyles among young adults in college and university settings. Key arguments put forward by respondees include:

- Lack of Healthy Options: A view that many canteens in educational institutions offer limited healthy food choices, making it difficult for students to maintain a nutritious diet.
- Education and Awareness: Putting forward a need for ongoing education about nutrition, alcohol consumption, and the importance of physical activity, particularly in relation to weight management and overall health.
- Systematic Approach: A comprehensive approach is necessary to ensure consistent messaging about nutrition and physical activity throughout a person's life, involving parents and community influences.
- Access to Healthy Foods: Affordable and accessible healthy food options are crucial, especially for students with limited financial resources.

- Active Travel Promotion: Encouraging active travel methods, such as walking and cycling, is essential for fostering healthier lifestyles among students.
- Support for Vulnerable Groups: Special attention should be given to groups at higher risk of obesity, such as women, girls, and individuals with disabilities, to ensure they have access to physical activity and healthy food.
- Collaboration with Local Authorities: Engaging local authorities can enhance workplace settings and promote physical activity initiatives.
- Addressing Broader Influences: Factors such as job insecurity and socio-economic status significantly impact health outcomes, necessitating a broader approach to health promotion.
- Training for Professionals: Training for professionals in educational settings on eating disorders and obesity is essential to support students effectively.
- Integration of Standards: Implementing nutrition standards across all catering facilities in educational settings is vital for promoting healthy eating.

Overall, responses underscore the importance of creating supportive environments that prioritise health and well-being for young adults in educational institutions.

"The healthy choice must be the easy and affordable choice." **The** Association for the Study of Obesity and British Dietetic Association Obesity Specialist Group

"This age group should now be able to understand the risks and effects of obesogenic environment and maintaining a healthier lifestyle. Reiterating emphasis on healthier lifestyle crucial at this stage as will likely laydown future lifestyles for students into adult life and their families." **Consultant Paediatrician - NHSCT**

"Reducing weight stigma and access to relevant services at the time an individual is ready to make changes and that suit the needs and lifestyle of younger adults should be of a high priority." **Counterweight**

Healthcare settings priorities

In their narrative responses (52 respondents) to Question 11 Healthcare settings priorities, answerers highlight the critical need for improving food quality and nutritional standards in healthcare settings, particularly hospitals. Key arguments put forward by respondees include:

- Nutritional Standards: There is a strong call for the full implementation of nutrition standards across all Health and Social Care (HSC) Trust catering facilities to ensure that meals are healthy, appetising, and meet dietary needs.
- Training for Healthcare Professionals: Medical students and healthcare professionals require more training on eating disorders to provide effective care and referral pathways.
- Support for Staff and Patients: The importance of providing healthy food options for both staff and patients is highlighted, along with the need for facilities that accommodate shift workers, such as secure cycle parks and showers.
- Healthy Food Culture: Responses advocate for creating a healthier food culture in hospitals and care settings, suggesting that varied and appetising healthy options should be available, supported by appropriate funding.
- Addressing Obesity: There is a concern about rising levels of obesity among healthcare staff, and the need for active participation in health and well-being initiatives is stressed.
- Environmental Considerations: Responses suggest that healthcare settings should promote active travel and create environments conducive to health, such as green spaces and exercise facilities.
- Monitoring and Feedback: Continuous monitoring of food quality and gathering patient feedback on hospital meals are essential for ensuring that nutritional needs are met.
- Legislation and Policy: The need for robust enforcement of nutritional standards and consideration of existing legislation when developing new policies is stressed.

Overall, responses here encourage for a comprehensive approach to improving food and nutrition in healthcare settings, recognising its impact on the health of both patients and staff. "The implementation of nutritional standards for catering in health and social care should be robustly enforced to ensure needs and dietary requirement are met and that healthy food is available." **Diabetes UK Northern Ireland**

"Hospitals are caring for the most sick and vulnerable in society - current standards and provision of food and nutrition is significantly below what could be considered beneficial for health. This is critical to address and enforce through monitoring and surveillance." **Queen's University Belfast**

Local government and community settings priorities

In their narrative responses (51 respondents) to Question 11 Local government and community settings priorities, answerers discuss the importance of creating environments that promote healthy eating and physical activity, particularly in community settings and around schools. They highlight the need for community weight management programs that focus on long-term health rather than just weight loss. They underscore the challenges posed by unhealthy food options in the vicinity of schools and advocates for improving the nutritional quality of available food rather than banning unhealthy options outright.

Responses stress the significance of including hard-to-reach populations in consultations and decision-making processes to ensure that policies meet the unique needs of various communities. The role of local government and community settings is underscored, particularly in providing physical activity programs and maintaining sports facilities. Responses call for a consistent approach to health promotion across local councils and the need for healthy food options in various settings, including workplaces, leisure facilities, and educational institutions.

Additionally, responses point out the necessity of training for staff on eating disorders and appropriate signposting for support. They also advocate for a long-term commitment to reviewing and implementing health policies, with an emphasis on evidence-based practices to promote healthier lifestyles. Overall, responses call for a collaborative approach involving

47

local authorities, community groups, and stakeholders to effectively address obesity and improve public health in local government and community settings.

"We believe it is important to tackle hard-to-reach, often sedentary people through bespoke behaviour change programmes." **Sustrans NI**

"Meals should healthy and nutritious. These settings provide the opportunity to showcase healthy choices in action " **Women's Forum Northern Ireland**

"We strongly support these proposals and look forward to continuing to support the development of nutrition standards for catering and vending in local government settings." **UK Potato Processors' Association (PPA)**

Consultation Question 12 – Healthy Places: Is there anything missing that is likely to have a positive impact on this theme and what it is trying to achieve?

In their narrative responses (55 respondents) to Question 12 - Healthy Places, answerers stress the critical role of the retail environment in promoting healthy choices, particularly for children and young people, amidst the prevalence of unhealthy food options. They advocate for collaboration across Departments, particularly Education and Health, to implement effective programs that prioritise healthy eating and physical activity. Registered Dietitians are highlighted as essential for providing accurate nutrition information, and the importance of addressing social and commercial determinants of health is stressed.

Responses also call for the creation of inclusive, accessible spaces that encourage physical activity and healthy eating, while recognising the need for community involvement in decision-making. They stress the significance of addressing health inequalities, particularly in urban settings, and suggests that the home environment should be considered in health strategies.

Furthermore, they point out the necessity of integrating healthy living components in various settings, including workplaces, and emphasise the importance of funding and support for

initiatives that promote active travel and community engagement. The need for clear labelling of unhealthy foods and the potential benefits of personalised nutrition are also discussed, alongside the importance of understanding human behaviour in promoting healthier choices. Overall, responses here advocate for a comprehensive, collaborative approach to creating healthier environments and addressing the barriers to healthy living across all settings.

> "Healthy options and restricted access to high fat high sugar foods MUST be a priority in all settings in our environment." **Individual**

> " The importance of working across departments to deliver better programs within these educational settings is necessary. Education and health need to be working collaboratively." **Individual**

> "Inequality plays a clear role in overweight and obesity and, while inequality is not a solely urban phenomenon, cities are (or should be) a key setting for creating a society where healthy eating and physical activity are supported and enabled." **Developing Healthy Communities NI**

Healthy People

As well as amending the wider policy and legislative environment and ensuring that a range of settings support people to be healthy, this theme focuses on the need to help, support, and enable people to prevent poor health and wellbeing, to provide early interventions for those who may need additional help, and to provide appropriate treatment and interventions which seek to reduce the harm to those who may be living with overweight and obesity.

Consultation Question 13 – Healthy People: Do you agree with this theme and what it is seeking to achieve?

Here, 100% of 91 respondents agreed with the Healthy People theme, and what it is seeking to achieve, proposed for the Healthy Futures strategic framework, broken down by 53 responders strongly agreeing and 38 agreeing. The graphs below show the breakdown of responses:



Figure 9: Breakdown of responses to the Healthy People theme

Strongly Agree	Agree	Disagree	Strongly Disagree	Total answered	N/A or Not Answered	Total Agree	Total Disagree	% Agree	% Disagree
53	38	0	0	91	20	91	0	100.0%	0.0%

Table 11: Q13 - Healthy People. Breakdown of responses

In their narrative responses (56 respondents) to Question 13, answerers stress the need for a coordinated approach to support individuals seeking help with weight management and obesity. They highlight the importance of evaluating necessary support and resources, particularly in community settings and specialised health services. Responses advocate for a long-term, people-centred investment strategy that fosters a non-judgmental environment, enabling individuals to make healthier choices through supportive health coaching. Key arguments put forward by respondees include:

- Holistic Support: A multi-disciplinary approach is essential, involving various healthcare professionals to address the complex factors contributing to obesity, rather than focusing solely on weight loss.
- Comprehensive Metrics: Current metrics are criticised for being weight-centric; responses suggest incorporating broader health outcomes, such as improved nutrition knowledge, physical activity levels, and quality of life indicators.
- Psychological and Medical Interventions: The importance of psychological support and medical management is emphasised, particularly for individuals living with obesity, alongside appropriate nutritional counselling.
- Community Engagement: Responses calls for community-based interventions and the need for accessible resources, particularly for vulnerable populations, to promote healthy lifestyles.
- Prevention and Education: There is a strong focus on prevention, early intervention, and education, particularly in schools and community settings, to foster healthier behaviours from a young age.
- Addressing Stigma: The text stresses the need to combat weight stigma and ensure that health services are inclusive and sensitive to the needs of all individuals, including those livings with eating disorders and those living with overweight and obesity.
- Long-term Commitment: Responses advocate for sustained funding and support for programs that can embed healthy practices within communities, rather than relying on short-term initiatives.

Overall, responses suggest a comprehensive framework for addressing obesity through a supportive, inclusive, and multi-faceted approaches that prioritises long-term health outcomes over immediate weight loss.

"Future investment should be focused on a people-based approach. People who have issues with their weight or obesity need to feel supported and that they are not being judged." **NHSCT - Health and Wellbeing Team** "The development of a chronic condition like obesity involves multiple factors, so it is important to invest in a team of qualified healthcare professionals and take a multi-disciplinary approach to prevention and treatment." **Freelance Dietitians Group Northern Ireland**

"The Whole System Approach underpinning this Strategy rightly pinpoints that unhealthy people is the result of the current social, cultural, and infrastructural conditions present in our society. **Outscape**"

Consultation Question 14 – Healthy People: Do you agree with these priorities?

An overwhelming majority (98%) of 82 respondents agreed with the priorities suggested for the Healthy People theme. The graphs below show the breakdown of responses:



Figure 10: Breakdown of responses to the pregnancy and early years priorities

Strongly Agree	Agree	Disagree	Strongly Disagree	Total answered	N/A or Not Answered	Total Agree	Total Disagree	% Agree	% Disagree
53	27	2	0	82	29	80	2	97.6%	2.4%

Table 12: Q14 - Healthy People: Priorities. Breakdown of responses

The consultation sought narrative responses to the following groups of suggested Healthy People priorities:

- Pregnancy and early years priorities
- Prevention and awareness programmes priorities

• Weight management services priorities

Respondents were free to provide free-text responses for each of these priorities and the responses are summarised in the following paragraphs.

Pregnancy and early years priorities

In their narrative responses (52 respondents) to Question 14 Pregnancy and early years priorities, answerers stress the critical importance of promoting physical activity and good nutrition during pregnancy and early childhood to mitigate long-term health issues, such as gestational diabetes and obesity. They highlight the role of healthcare professionals, including midwives and health visitors, in supporting parents, and the need for structured post-pregnancy programs, particularly for women with high BMI.

Key recommendations include launching media campaigns to educate both men and women on nutrition's impact on fertility and child health, reinstating the folate acid campaign to reduce neural-tube defects, and addressing mental health issues related to eating disorders. Responses advocate for a shift in focus from weight management to overall health benefits during pregnancy and stress the importance of early intervention and community support.

Additionally, responses call for improved access to resources for families in disadvantaged areas, highlighting the need for comprehensive preconception care to address risk factors like obesity and unhealthy habits. They also stress the necessity of including oral health education and addressing the high sugar content in baby foods, which can lead to dental issues in young children.

Overall, responses underscore the need for a holistic approach to health during pregnancy and early years, integrating nutrition, physical activity, and mental health support to foster lifelong healthy habits.

> "The focus on pregnancy is too narrow - to really make an impact and support women, the focus needs to be on BEFORE, during and AFTER pregnancy." **Queen's University Belfast**

"Tooth decay is the number one reason for hospital admissions among young children, and the Scientific Advisory Committee on Nutrition (SACN) has warned infant feeding practices and delayed, or poor dental hygiene may be associated with decay prevalence." **British Dental Association**

"Exclusive breastfeeding of infants is correlated with reduced rates of obesity in older years, however some children with additional needs may require significant additional support in order to maintain breastfeeding if initiated." **Physical Health in Learning Disability Task Force – Belfast Health and Social Care Trust**

Prevention and awareness programmes priorities

In their narrative responses (58 respondents) to Question 14 Prevention and awareness programmes priorities, answerers highlight the need for a coordinated approach to support individuals seeking assistance with health and obesity issues, highlighting the importance of community-based programs such as the Diabetes Prevention Programme. They stress the necessity of evidence-based nutrition education and consistent messaging across agencies to address health inequalities. Prevention is identified as a key focus, with recommendations for integrating health considerations into various government policies. Responses advocate for practical support over mere awareness, suggesting that programs should be engaging, accessible, and tailored to diverse populations, including those with disabilities. They also call for increased funding for existing programs, the importance of addressing food insecurity, and the need for training healthcare professionals to sensitively discuss weight management with patients. Overall, response centre on the critical role of prevention, community involvement, and the need for comprehensive support systems to combat obesity and promote healthy living.

" Prevention is key to try and address this issue. Prevention, and health impact across all policies, is something that needs to be considered across all levels of decision making in NI." **Ards and North Down Borough Council**

54

"It is important that there is some initial exploration around selfmanagement programmes and digital technology and apps to ensure that these are evidenced based and also fit for purpose." **The Association for the Study of Obesity and British Dietetic Association Obesity Specialist Group**

"Raising awareness programmes need to be secondary to the provision of supportive food and physical environments." **safefood**

Weight management services priorities

In their narrative responses (56 respondents) to Question 14 Weight management services priorities, answerers argue for the establishment of a coordinated and inclusive weight management program in Northern Ireland, stressing the need for early access to support before obesity reaches crisis levels. They highlight the importance of long-term investment in weight management services, as short-term funding has proven unsustainable. A multi-tiered approach involving registered dietitians is recommended to educate individuals on nutrition and provide preventative and treatment options. Responses stress the necessity of a person-centred, non-judgmental approach that incorporates behavioural science and emotional well-being support.

Responses also call for improved access to weight management drugs and safe interventions and highlight the need for screening for eating disorders within any weight management services. They advocate for community-based programs and the integration of physical activity with weight management efforts. Responses point to the importance of addressing food insecurity and the need for tailored services that consider individual circumstances, particularly for those with living with diabetes.

Furthermore, they highlight the critical role of community pharmacies in supporting weight management services and the necessity for accessible information and training for professionals to cater to diverse communication needs. Responses stress the importance of properly resourcing the proposed Regional Obesity Management Service (ROMS) to ensure equitable access to care and prevent reliance on unregulated treatments.

55

"A person centred, non-judgemental approach, is essential within weight management services to help those who are already living with obesity." Ards and North Down Borough Council

"Long-term investment is necessary to tackle a long-term issue." **Freelance Dietitians Group Northern Ireland**

"Weight management services should be person centred, stigma-free, and provide consistent wraparound support." **Diabetes UK Northern Ireland**

Consultation Question 15 – Healthy People: Is there anything missing that is likely to have a positive impact on this theme and what it is trying to achieve?

In their narrative responses (47 respondents) to Question 15 – Healthy People, answerers discuss the need for a comprehensive approach to tackle health inequalities, particularly in relation to social prescribing and weight management services. They emphasise the importance of scoping existing services to identify successful strategies and gaps, while also highlighting the current exclusion of adolescents and children from certain programs. Key recommendations include the necessity of educating the workforce, ensuring adequate funding, and focusing on prevention rather than treatment to save costs in the long run.

Responses advocate for consistent health and nutrition messaging, the inclusion of Registered Dietitians, and the integration of behavioural psychology in weight management services. They stress the importance of clear assessment and referral pathways for eating disorders and the need for dedicated funding for oral health services.

Additionally, responses point out the importance of addressing weight stigma and the complexities surrounding obesity, including the need for support for individuals with learning disabilities. They call for a biopsychosocial model, for the formation of self-help groups, and the for the identification of food addiction as a serious issue. Overall, they underscore the importance of a population health approach, robust evaluation processes, and the inclusion of diverse voices in shaping health strategies.

"It is hugely important to have a consistent health and nutrition message across the whole strategy." **Individual**

"To succeed, it is critical that this strategy receives sufficient levels of investment, that this investment is ring-fenced, and that return on investment is regularly monitored." **Mencap NI**

"Eating healthily often costs more than eating convenience foods, especially when feeding a family." **Women's Forum Northern Ireland**

Collaboration and a Whole System Approach

Overweight and obesity is complex and interrelated with other issues and outcomes. It is vital therefore that this strategic framework is a living document which is regularly updated in line with the latest international research and evidence, that we work collectively across the UK and Ireland, and that we enable people to come together to find solutions and take a systematic approach to achieving our goals.

Consultation Question 16 – Collaboration and a Whole System Approach: Do you agree with this theme and what it is seeking to achieve?

Here, 100% of 96 respondents agreed with the Collaboration and a Whole System Approach theme, and what it is seeking to achieve, proposed for the Healthy Futures strategic framework, broken down by 66 responders strongly agreeing and 30 agreeing. The graphs below show the breakdown of responses:



Figure 11: Breakdown of responses to the Collaboration and a Whole System Approach theme

Strongly Agree	Agree	Disagree	Strongly Disagree	Total answered	N/A or Not Answered	Total Agree	Total Disagree	% Agree	% Disagree
66	30	0	0	96	15	96	0	100.0%	0.0%

Table 13: Q16 - Collaboration and a Whole System Approach. Breakdown of responses

In their narrative responses (54 respondents) to Question 16, answerers highlight the importance of adopting a whole system approach to tackle obesity, stressing the need for collaboration among various stakeholders, including government departments, community organisations, and food manufacturers. They advocate for evidence-based practices and the replication of successful models from other countries. Responses here stress the necessity of governance and accountability structures to ensure effective implementation

and monitoring of outcomes. They also call for clear funding requirements and for a strategic framework that aligns with other health initiatives. Responses recognise the complexity of obesity as a public health issue intertwined with socio-economic factors and advocate for interventions that promote healthy diets and active lifestyles from an early age. Additionally, they suggest integrating sustainable food practices into the obesity strategic framework to address food affordability and promote healthier choices. Overall, responses advocate for a comprehensive, collaborative, and adaptable strategy to effectively combat obesity and improve public health outcomes.

"A whole-systems approach to obesity prevention in theory shifts focus away from individuals, putting emphasis on improving systems where people live." **Diabetes UK Northern Ireland**

"We welcome the whole systems approach underpinning the strategy and for collaboration across the whole system, including food and drink manufacturers." **Néstle UK Ltd.**

"Obesity is a complex issue and whilst the DoH can lead the strategy; it can only be delivered / achieved through partnership with other key stakeholders." **Public Health Agency**

"The Whole System Approach underpinning this Strategy rightly pinpoints that unhealthy people is the result of the current social, cultural, and infrastructural conditions present in our society." **Outscape**

Consultation Question 17 – Collaboration and a Whole System Approach: Do you agree with these priorities?

Here, 100% of 85 respondents agreed with the priorities suggested for the Collaboration and a Whole System Approach theme suggested for the Healthy Futures strategic framework, broken down by 59 responders strongly agreeing and 26 agreeing. The graphs below show the breakdown of responses:





Strongly Agree	Agree	Disagree	Strongly Disagree	Total answered	N/A or Not Answered	Total Agree	Total Disagree	% Agree	% Disagree
59	26	0	0	85	26	85	0	100.0%	0.0%

Table 14: Q17 - Collaboration and a Whole System Approach: Priorities. Breakdown of responses

In their narrative responses (47 respondents) to Question 17, answerers stress the necessity of a comprehensive, whole system approach to obesity management, highlighting the importance of collaboration across various sectors, including the private sector. They argue that easy access to unhealthy food undermines efforts to combat obesity and stress the need for shared goals, legislation, and adequate resources.

Key points include the importance of implementing an evaluation process within existing databases to track outcomes and identify service gaps, as well as addressing barriers such as social deprivation and mental health issues. Responses here again advocate for removing stigma around obesity, for treating it as a disease, and for ensuring effective collaboration among treatment teams and stakeholders.

They also call for community engagement, training for staff on learning disabilities, and the collection of data across departments to measure outcomes effectively. The need for accountability, ongoing training, and a commitment to a collective approach is stressed, along with the recognition that tackling obesity requires addressing related issues such as poverty. Overall, responses underscore the complexity of obesity management and the necessity for coordinated, multifaceted strategies to achieve equitable health outcomes.

"Implementing an evaluation process within existing central database systems, such as Encompass or NIECR, could yield significant benefits." *Freelance Dietitians Group Northern Ireland*

"A whole systems approach is essential to support our people with prevention, attainment and maintenance of a healthier weight and lifestyle." Northern Ireland Board of the British Dietetic Association

"We agree with the priorities outlined in relation to taking a whole system approach and fostering collaboration." **MediCare Pharmacy Group**

"The collection and use of data across all departments who have a role to play will allow for outcomes to be more measured and to determine if they have been achieved." **The Northern Ireland NCD Alliance (Non-Communicable Diseases)**

Consultation Question 18 – Collaboration and a Whole System Approach: Is there anything missing that is likely to have a positive impact on this theme and what it is trying to achieve?

In their narrative responses (43 respondents) to Question 18, answerers stress the importance of robust evaluation and collaboration in addressing obesity and health inequalities. They advocate for analysing successful existing services to minimise costs and to create sustainable programs, while also improving referral processes to avoid duplication. They report that a whole system approach is necessary, involving diverse stakeholder groups to pool knowledge and resources. Responses highlight the need for clear governance structures, funding, and accountability in implementing health strategies. They stress the significance of addressing environmental and commercial determinants of health, as well as the necessity for effective community involvement, particularly from organisations like Mencap and Special Olympics, to support individuals with learning disabilities in leading healthier lives. Additionally, they call for interventions such as clear labelling of ultra-processed foods and personalised nutrition to promote healthier dietary choices.

"To save costs and create sustainable programs, analyse successful existing services and build on them." **Freelance Dietitians Group Northern Ireland**

"It is important to give recognition to the role and responsibility of the entire supply chain and the need to incorporate them in a whole systems approach to appropriately address challenges." **Néstle UK Ltd.**

"A whole systems approach to obesity prevention should, ideally, address and target environmental and commercial determinants of unhealthy food consumption and physical inactivity." **Diabetes UK Northern Ireland**

"It's important to invite community and advocacy groups such as Mencap, Special Olympics and others to have active involvement in these topics so that we can more positively affect the lives of people with a learning disability to live more healthily." **Physical Health in Learning Disability Task Force – Belfast Health and Social Care Trust**

Closing comments: Any other points, issues or comments raised for consideration.

The Healthy Futures consultation responses present a comprehensive analysis of obesity in Northern Ireland, stressing the need for a new strategic framework to address the issue. Key arguments include:

- Lifestyle Medicine Focus: Responses advocate for prioritising lifestyle medicine over quick-fix solutions such as bariatric surgery and weight loss medications, which can be costly and complicated. They suggest that well-funded lifestyle medicine approaches should be the first line of any intervention.
- Integrated Approach: A joined-up approach is necessary, with better coordination among community resources to avoid double funding and ensure effective use of financial resources.
- Public Health Themes: Responses highlight broader public health themes, such as social connections and the impact of lifestyle choices, including smoking and alcohol consumption, on health.
- Access for Children and Vulnerable Groups: Responses stress the importance of ensuring that children and young people have access to specialist services and that the needs of individuals with physical disabilities are considered in health initiatives.
- Food Industry Collaboration: There is a call for a collaborative relationship with the food industry to promote healthy, sustainable food options while addressing the profitability of healthy foods.
- Prevention and Funding: Emphasising prevention, responses argue for appropriate funding allocation to support long-term health outcomes and the importance of addressing food poverty.
- Weight Stigma and Language: Responses critique the use of stigmatising language around weight and suggests focusing on achieving a best weight for health rather than an ideal weight.
- Role of Registered Dietitians: Responses highlight the need for Registered Dietitians to be involved in all tiers of care, advocating for investment in dietetic services focused on prevention.
- Behavioural Change and Community Engagement: Responses underscore the importance of understanding human behaviour in addressing obesity and the need for community-based interventions.

- Mental Health Considerations: Responses point out the intersection of mental health and obesity, advocating for tailored interventions for individuals living with mental health issues.
- Legislative and Policy Recommendations: Responses call for clear policies and legislative measures to support healthier food environments and reduce the marketing of unhealthy foods.

Overall, responses received put emphasis on taking a holistic, multi-faceted approach to tackling obesity, focusing on prevention, community engagement, and the importance of addressing social determinants of health.

"Ideally the emphasis would be on well-evidenced, sufficiently funded lifestyle medicine approaches in the first instance." **Individual**

"We have to stop treating the complications of obesity and treat the disease of obesity to prevent complications." **Freelance Dietitians Group Northern Ireland**

"Exercise and nutrition come hand in hand. You can't do one without the other." **Individual**

"The concept of embedding healthy habits throughout the school years sounds great, and the adoption of a 'health led' rather than a 'health owned' approach is hugely beneficial to support this concept." **BHSCT, Community Child Health**

Chapter 4: Conclusion

The Department is pleased at the overall highly positive response to this consultation on the proposed 'Healthy Futures' strategic framework.

The Department wishes to thank all those who took the time to attend the public consultation events and respond to this public consultation process via any means. The views shared have been thoroughly analysed in the production of this report, and the points made will be an important source of evidence and information moving forward.

The Department will seek to keep interested parties informed about future developments for this strategic framework. We continue working with stakeholders and other Departments to align with existing and developing policies and strategies, seeking to add value, create synergies and avoid duplication. We will also continue to work with partners and stakeholders to develop a final strategy framework and associated action plan, for publication and implementation in 2025.

Annex A: List of Consultation Questions

Please note that all questions asked in this consultation allowed respondents to add a narrative response, in addition to making a selection showing agreement/disagreement in those questions, where this was an option. Questions with subtopics, denoted by bullet points, also allowed responders to add a narrative response for each subtopic.

Consultation Question 1 – Screening: Have you any comments on either the Equality/Good Relations or Rural screening documents?

Consultation Question 2 – Screening: Are there any areas or issues you feel we should be considering in future Equality/Good Relations or Rural screenings?

Consultation Question 3 – Vision: the overall vision for this new strategic framework is to "create the conditions in Northern Ireland which enable and support people to improve their diet and participate in more physical activity, and reduce the risk of related harm for those living with overweight and obesity". Do you agree with this vision?

Strongly agree:
Agree:
Disagree:
Strongly disagree:

Consultation Question 4 – Principles: The project board proposed a range of principles for the development and implementation of the new strategic framework, these are: taking whole system approach with the framework being health led but not solely health owned, taking a life course approach and targeting or prioritising certain groups, focusing on reducing inequalities, acknowledging the alignment with other policy areas and not duplicating effort, being outcome-based, and that the framework will provide an umbrella for actions to prevent and address overweight and obesity. Do you agree with these principles?

Strongly agree:
Agree:
Strongly disagree:
Strongly disagree:

Consultation Question 5 – Outcomes: This strategic framework focuses on four main long-term population level outcomes across the life course: Reducing the percentage of people in Northern Ireland who are living with overweight and/or obesity; Improving the population's diet and nutrition; Increasing the percentage of the population who participate

in regular physical activity; and Reducing the prevalence of overweight and obesity-related Non-Communicable Diseases (NCDs). Do you agree with these 4 population level outcomes?

Strongly agree:
Agree:
Strongly disagree:
Strongly disagree:

Consultation Question 6 – Thematic Approach: The strategic framework takes a thematic approach to the issues focusing on four key themes: Health Policies, Health Places, Healthy People, and Collaboration and A Whole System Approach. Are all the key areas covered within this thematic approach?

Yes: 🗆 No: 🗆

Consultation Question 7 – Healthy Policies: Our ability to eat a healthy diet, participate in physical activity, and to maintain a weight that is good for our health, is very much influenced by the wider environment in which we live our lives. This theme focuses on the strategies, policies, regulations and stakeholders that control the wider food and physical environment, therefore playing a key role in addressing the obesogenic environment. Do you agree with this theme and what it is seeking to achieve?

Strongly agree:
Agree:
Disagree:
Strongly disagree:

Consultation Question 8 - Healthy Policies: Do you agree with these priorities?

Strongly agree:
Agree:
Strongly disagree:
Strongly disagree:

- Food environment priorities
- Food labelling and information priorities
- Heathier food options priorities
- Physical activity and active travel priorities

Consultation Question 9 – Healthy Policies: Is there anything missing that is likely to have a positive impact on this theme and what it is trying to achieve?

Consultation Question 10 – Healthy Places: At all ages, we can spend a significant portion of our lives in places and settings that influence our ability or inability to eat healthily, be physically active and to manage our weight. This can be through a lack of access to opportunities, barriers to participation and lack of availability. However, settings can also play a positive role in supporting the health and wellbeing of the people who access them. This theme focuses on creating supportive places and settings. Do you agree with this theme and what it is seeking to achieve?

Strongly agree:
Agree:
Disagree:
Strongly disagree:

Consultation Question 11 - Healthy Places: Do you agree with these priorities?

Strongly agree:
Agree:
Disagree:
Strongly disagree:

- Early years settings priorities
- School settings priorities
- College, university, and workplace settings priorities
- Healthcare settings priorities
- Local government and community settings priorities

Consultation Question 12 – Healthy Places: Is there anything missing that is likely to have a positive impact on this theme and what it is trying to achieve?

Consultation Question 13 – Healthy People: As well as amending the wider policy and legislative environment and ensuring that a range of settings support people to be healthy, this theme therefore focuses on the need to help, support, and enable people to prevent poor health and wellbeing, to provide early interventions for those who may need additional help, and to provide appropriate treatment and interventions which seek to reduce the harm to those who may be living with overweight and obesity. Do you agree with this theme and what it is seeking to achieve?

Strongly agree:
Agree:
Disagree:
Strongly disagree:

Consultation Question 14 - Healthy People: Do you agree with these priorities?

Strongly agree:
Agree:
Disagree:
Strongly disagree:

- Pregnancy and early years priorities
- Prevention and awareness programmes priorities
- Weight management services priorities

Consultation Question 15 – Healthy People: Is there anything missing that is likely to have a positive impact on this theme and what it is trying to achieve?

Consultation Question 16 – Collaboration and a Whole System Approach: Overweight and obesity is complex and interrelated with other issues and outcomes. It is vital therefore that this strategic framework is a living document which is regularly updated in line with the latest international research and evidence, that we work collectively across the UK and lreland, and that we enable people to come together to find solutions and take a systematic approach to achieving our goals. Do you agree with this theme and what it is seeking to achieve?

Strongly agree: \Box Agree: \Box Disagree: \Box Strongly disagree: \Box

Consultation Question 17 – Collaboration and a Whole System Approach: Do you

agree with these priorities?

Strongly agree:
Agree:
Disagree:
Strongly disagree:

• Whole System Approach and collaboration priorities

Consultation Question 18 – Collaboration and a Whole System Approach: Is there anything missing that is likely to have a positive impact on this theme and what it is trying to achieve?

Annex B: Evidence Submitted by Responders

We are grateful to all responders who provided details and/or references to other sources of evidence and information to support their consultation responses. Below is a list of all the additional sources of information submitted to this consultation:

- [1]. Academy of Medical Royal Colleges (2023) *Securing our healthy future: Prevention is better than cure*. Available at: <u>https://www.aomrc.org.uk/wp-</u> content/uploads/2023/09/Securing our healthy future 0923.pdf. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [2]. Adams, T. *et al.* (2023) *Long-term cancer outcomes after bariatric surgery*. Obesity. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/37605634/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [3]. Advertising Standards Authority (2019) ASA Monitoring Report on Online HFSS Ads. Available at: <u>https://www.asa.org.uk/static/uploaded/14be798d-bd30-49d6-bcfbc9ed7e66e565.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [4]. Advertising Standards Authority (2022) ASA report: Ongoing decline in children's exposure to agerestricted TV ads. Available at: <u>https://www.asa.org.uk/resource/childrens-exposure-to-age-restrictedtv-ads-2021.html</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [5]. Alexandra Rose Charity (n.d.) Fruit & Veg on Prescription. Available at: <u>https://www.alexandrarose.org.uk/fruit-and-veg-on-prescription/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [6]. Ames, E. (2023) LGA calls for Healthy Start uplift. LocalGov. Available at: <u>https://www.localgov.co.uk/LGA-calls-for-Healthy-Start-uplift/58319</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [7]. Arzu Yoldaş, M. et al. (2023) The relationship between blood biochemical parameters and oral health in children with obesity/overweight. British Dental Journal. Available at: <u>https://www.nature.com/articles/s41415-023-6593-z</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [8]. Asher, S. et al. (2022) Periodontal health, cognitive decline, and dementia: A systematic review and meta-analysis of longitudinal studies. Journal of the American Geriatrics Society. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/36073186/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [9]. Ashton, M. (2023) *The importance of spatial planning for health disparities*. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/37002671/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [10]. BBC NI (2024) Unforgivable' for Sport NI to hand bank £1m in funding. Available at: https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-northern-ireland-68100112. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [11]. Beacom, E. et al. (2021) Investigating the healthiness of food products on promotion: market brands and own brands. British Food Journal. Available at: <u>https://www.emerald.com/insight/content/doi/10.1108/bfj-04-2021-0371/full/html</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [12]. Beacom, E. et al. (2022) Food Insecurity Measurement: Stakeholder Comparisons of the EU-SILC and HFSSM Indicators and Considerations Towards the Usefulness of a Headline Indicator. Social Indicators Research. Available at: <u>https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s11205-021-02865-7</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [13]. Beat (n.d.) Why the Government must drop its plan to make calorie labels mandatory. Available at: <u>https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/6182/documents/68918/default/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [14]. Bite Back (n.d.) Let's Bite Back. Available at: https://www.biteback2030.com/lets-bite-back/.
- [15]. Boavida, J. *et al.* (2023) *Active Aging and Smart Public Parks*. Geriatrics. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/37887967/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [16]. Boffey, D. (2024) Post-Brexit food labelling rules to appease DUP will lead to higher prices, says industry. The Guardian. Available at: <u>https://www.theguardian.com/politics/2024/feb/01/post-brexit-food-labelling-rules-to-appease-dup-will-lead-to-higher-prices-says-industry</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [17]. Bogliacino, F. *et al.* (2022) Less is more: Information overload in the labelling of fish and aquaculture products. Food Policy. Available at: <u>https://eprints.lse.ac.uk/118660/1/Gaskell_less_is_more_published.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [18]. Breen, C. et al. (2022) Obesity in Adults: A 2022 Adapted Clinical Practice Guideline for Ireland. Obesity Facts. Available at: <u>https://karger.com/ofa/article/15/6/736/825667/Obesity-in-Adults-A-2022-Adapted-Clinical-Practice</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [19]. Breslin, G. et al. (2022) A whole systems approach to obesity prevention: a rapid synthesis of evidence to inform the Northern Ireland Obesity Prevention Strategy Project Board. Available at: <u>https://publichealth.ie/sites/default/files/2023-02/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/WSA-approach-toobesity-prevention-final.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [20]. British Nutrition Foundation (2023) Healthier food choices in supermarkets. Available at: <u>https://www.nutrition.org.uk/news/what-works-in-real-world-settings-to-influence-healthier-food-choices-in-supermarkets/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [21]. Brown, A. et al. (2015) Description and preliminary results from a structured specialist behavioural weight management group intervention: Specialist Lifestyle Management (SLiM) programme. British Medical Journal. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/25854970/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [22]. Brown, H. et al. (2022) No new fast-food outlets allowed! Evaluating the effect of planning policy on the local food environment in the North East of England. Social Science & Medicine Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/35724588/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [23]. Brown, K. et al. (2018) The fraction of cancer attributable to modifiable risk factors in England, Wales, Scotland, Northern Ireland, and the United Kingdom in 2015, British Journal of Cancer. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/29567982/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [24]. Canamares-Sanchez, S. et al. (2019). Protecting Children's Right to a Healthy Food Environment. Available at: <u>https://www.unicef.org/media/96101/file/Protecting-Childrens-Right-Healthy-Food-Environment.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [25]. Cancer Intelligence (2022) *Prevention Data Hub: Adult overweight and obesity*. Available at: <u>https://crukcancerintelligence.shinyapps.io/PreventionDataHub/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [26]. Cancer Research UK (2023) Longer, better lives: A programme for UK government for cancer research and care. Chapter 3: Prevent. Available at: <u>https://www.cancerresearchuk.org/sites/default/files/cruk_programme.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [27]. Cancer Research UK (2024) Cancer Statistics for the UK. Available at: <u>https://www.cancerresearchuk.org/health-professional/cancer-statistics-for-the-uk#heading-Three</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [28]. Caraher, M. and Furey, S. (2017) Is it appropriate to use surplus food to feed people in hunger? Shortterm Band-Aid to more deep-rooted problems of poverty. Available at: <u>https://foodresearch.org.uk/publications/is-it-appropriate-to-use-surplus-food-to-feed-people-in-hunger/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [29]. Caraher, M. and Furey, S. (2018) The Economics of Emergency Food Aid Provision: A Financial, Social and Cultural Perspective. London: Palgrave Macmillan eBook ISBN: 978-3-319-78506-6; DOI: 10.1007/978-3-319-78506-6; Hardcover ISBN: 978-3-319-78505-9.
- [30]. Caraher, M. and Furey, S. (2019) Are food banks merely a sticking plaster for food poverty? Available at: <u>https://www.rte.ie/eile/brainstorm/2019/0207/1028061-are-food-banks-merely-a-sticking-plaster-for-food-poverty/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [31]. Caraher, M. and Furey, S. (2019) *Redistribution of surplus food is NOT the solution to food poverty*. Available at: <u>https://www.foodaidnetwork.org.uk/post/redistribution-of-surplus-food-is-not-the-solution-to-food-poverty</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [32]. Caraher, M. and Furey, S. (2021) *Debt and Diet*. Available at: <u>https://foodresearch.org.uk/blogs/debt-and-diet/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [33]. Caraher, M. and Furey, S. (2022) The corporate influence on food charity and aid: The "Hunger Industrial Complex" and the death of welfare. Frontiers in Public Health. Available at: <u>https://www.frontiersin.org/journals/public-health/articles/10.3389/fpubh.2022.950955/full</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [34]. Caraher, M., Furey, S. and Wells, R. (2023) Food policy in the United Kingdom: an Introduction. First edition. London: Routledge. ISBN: 9781032196770 (paperback)/ 9781032196824 (hard back)/ 9781003260301 (e-book).
- [35]. Cassinelli, E. el at. (2024) Preconception health and care policies, strategies and guidelines in the UK and Ireland: a scoping review. BMC Public Health. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/38909211/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [36]. Cassinelli, E. et al. (2022) Preconception health and care policies and guidelines in the UK and Ireland: a scoping review. The Lancet. Available at: <u>https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0140673622022711?via%3Dihub</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [37]. Cassinelli, E. *et al.* (2023) *Exploring health behaviours, attitudes and beliefs of women and men during the preconception and interconception periods: a cross-sectional study of adults on the island of Ireland*. Nutrients. Available at: <u>https://pure.qub.ac.uk/en/publications/exploring-health-behaviours-attitudes-and-beliefs-of-women-and-me</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [38]. Cassinelli, E. et al. (2023) Preconception health and care policies, strategies and guidelines in the UK and Ireland: a scoping review protocol. BMJ Open. Available at: <u>https://bmjopen.bmj.com/content/13/5/e067822</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [39]. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (2024) *Virtual Healthy Scholl (VHS)*. Available at: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/healthyschools/vhs/index.html</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [40]. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (2024) Whole School, Whole Community, Whole Child (WSCC). Available at: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/whole-school-community-</u> <u>child/about/?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/healthyschools/wscc/index.htm</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [41]. Child Poverty Action Group (2023) *Why universal free school meals is the right move*. Available at: <u>https://cpag.org.uk/news/why-universal-free-school-meals-right-move</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [42]. Cleland, C. *et al.* (2023) *Complex interventions to reduce car use and change travel behaviour: an umbrella review.* Journal of Transport and Health. Available at:
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2214140523000889. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [43]. Community Development and Health Network (2021) Birthwise & McCartan's Pharmacy. Available at: <u>https://www.cdhn.org/news/birthwise-mccartan%E2%80%99s-pharmacy</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [44]. Community Development and Health Network (2023) Our Lives, Our Meds, Our Health: Exploring medication safety through a social lens. Available at: <u>https://www.cdhn.org/sites/default/files/publications/OLOMOH%20Final%20full%20report.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [45]. Community Development and Health Network (n.d.) *Building the Community-Pharmacy Partnership Programme*. Available at: <u>https://www.cdhn.org/bcpp</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [46]. Community Development and Health Network (n.d.) Health Inequalities & Social Determinants of Health. Available at: <u>https://www.cdhn.org/health-inequalities-social-determinants-health</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [47]. Community Pharmacy Northern Ireland (n.d.) *Living Well Service*. Available at: <u>https://www.communitypharmacyni.co.uk/services/living-well/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [48]. Competition and Markets Authority (2023) CMA sets out Autumn update in review of competition in groceries sector. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/news/cma-sets-out-autumn-update-in-review-of-competition-in-groceries-sector</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [49]. Competition and Markets Authority (2023) CMA updates on action to contain cost of living pressures in groceries sector. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/news/cma-updates-on-action-to-containcost-of-living-pressures-in-groceries-sector</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [50]. Consumer Council (2022) Consumer Food Shopping Experiences. Available at: <u>https://www.consumercouncil.org.uk/research/consumer-food-shopping-experiences</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [51]. Consumer Council (2022) The cost and availability of a Minimum Essential Food Basket. Available at: <u>https://www.consumercouncil.org.uk/research/cost-and-availability-minimum-essential-food-basket</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [52]. Consumer Council (2023) Decarbonisation of Transport 2023 Full report (part 1). Available at: <u>https://www.consumercouncil.org.uk/research/decarbonisation-transport-2023-full-report-part-1</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [53]. Consumer Council (2023) Decarbonisation of Transport in Northern Ireland Summary Report. Available at: <u>https://www.consumercouncil.org.uk/research/decarbonisation-transport-northern-ireland-summary-report</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [54]. Consumer Council (2023) Focus on Food: How cost of living pressures are affecting consumers' food shopping and eating habits. Available at: <u>https://www.consumercouncil.org.uk/research/focus-food-howcost-living-pressures-are-affecting-consumers-food-shopping-and-eating</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [55]. Consumer Council (2023) Impact of cost and availability of free-from products on consumers. Available at: <u>https://www.consumercouncil.org.uk/research/impact-cost-and-availability-free-products-consumers</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [56]. Consumer Council (2023) Models for Transport Decarbonisation Information and Advice Report. Available at: <u>https://www.consumercouncil.org.uk/research/models-transport-decarbonisation-information-and-advice-report</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [57]. Consumer Council (2023) *Transport integration and MaaS Report: What can Northern Ireland learn from elsewhere*? Available at: <u>https://www.consumercouncil.org.uk/research/transport-integration-and-maas-report-what-can-northern-ireland-learn-elsewhere</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [58]. Consumer Council (2024) 2021-2026 Corporate Plan. Available at: <u>https://www.consumercouncil.org.uk/about-us/governance/corporate-documents/2021-2026-corporate-plan</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [59]. Consumer Council (2024) Consumers' views and behaviours in response to the rising cost of basics. Available at: <u>https://www.consumercouncil.org.uk/sites/default/files/2024-04/Consumer_Council%20_Cost%20_of_basics%20report_ACCESSIBLE%20VERSION.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [60]. Consumer Council (2024) Northern Ireland consumers & cost of living Pulse Survey December 2023. Available at: <u>https://www.consumercouncil.org.uk/research/northern-ireland-consumers-cost-living-pulse-survey-december-2023</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [61]. Consumer Council (2024) Northern Ireland Household Expenditure Tracker. Available at: <u>https://www.consumercouncil.org.uk/research/featured-research/northern-ireland-household-expenditure-tracker</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [62]. Consumer Council for Northern Ireland (2021) Hand to Mouth: Accessing healthy, affordable food on a low income | Northern Ireland | food poverty. Video. Available at: <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3G1DIYqvPts</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [63]. Council for the Curriculum, Examinations & Assessment (n.d.) *Physical Education*. Available at: <u>https://ccea.org.uk/key-stages-1-2/curriculum/physical-education</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [64]. Cronin, J. (2016) Nutripocalypse: The Nutrition Labelling Overload. Huffington Post. Available at: <u>https://www.huffingtonpost.co.uk/james-cronin/nutripocalypse-the-nutrition-labelling-overload b 9882600.html</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [65]. Crowther, B. (2024) New evidence of harmful health effects prompts call to ban energy drinks sales to under-16s, Sustain: the alliance for better food and farming. Available at: <u>https://www.sustainweb.org/news/jan24-energy-drinks/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [66]. Dallat, M. et al. (2014) Urban greenways have the potential to increase physical activity levels costeffectively. European Journal of Public Health. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/23531527/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [67]. De la Fuente, F. et al. (2020) Green Space Exposure Association with Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus, Physical Activity, and Obesity: A Systematic Review. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/33375559/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [68]. Dee, A. *et al.* (2015) Overweight and obesity on the island of Ireland: an estimation of costs. BMJ Open. Available at: <u>https://bmjopen.bmj.com/content/5/3/e006189</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [69]. Defeyter, G. et al. (2020) Food Insecurity and Lived Experience of Students (FILES). The impact of COVID-19 on education and children's services inquiry. UK Parliament Commons Education Committee. Available at: <u>https://committees.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/6225/pdf/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [70]. Department for Communities (2003) People and Place A Strategy for Neighbourhood Renewal. Available at: <u>https://www.communities-ni.gov.uk/publications/neighbourhood-renewal-people-and-place</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [71]. Department for Communities (2020) *New Disability Strategy*. Available at: <u>https://www.communities-ni.gov.uk/articles/new-disability-strategy</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [72]. Department for Communities (2022) Active Living- Sport and Physical Activity Strategy for Northern Ireland. Available at: <u>https://www.communities-ni.gov.uk/publications/active-living-sport-and-physical-activity-strategy-northern-ireland</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [73]. Department for Communities (2023) *People and Place Review*. Available at: <u>https://www.communities-ni.gov.uk/articles/people-and-place-review#toc-0</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [74]. Department for Communities (2024) *Anti-poverty*. Available at: <u>https://www.communities-ni.gov.uk/topics/anti-poverty</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [75]. Department for Digital, Culture, Media & Sport (2021) Introducing a 2100-0530 watershed on TV and online restriction for paid advertising of food and drink that are High in Fat, Salt and Sugar (HFSS) products. Available at: <u>https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/9962</u> <u>32/impact-assessment-hfss-advertising.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [76]. Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (2021) Government Buying Standard for food and catering services. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sustainable-procurementthe-gbs-for-food-and-catering-services/government-buying-standard-for-food-and-catering-services</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [77]. Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (2024) *Agriculture in the United Kingdom 2022, Chapter 7: Crops*. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/agriculture-in-the-united-kingdom-2022/chapter-7-crops</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [78]. Department for Health and Social Care (2022) Women's Health Strategy for England. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/womens-health-strategy-for-england</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [79]. Department for Work and Pensions (2024) *Children in low income families: local area statistics*. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/children-in-low-income-families-local-area-statistics</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [80]. Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs (2024) A Green Growth Strategy for Northern Ireland - Balancing our climate, environment and economy. Available at: <u>https://www.daera-ni.gov.uk/articles/green-growth-strategy-northern-ireland-balancing-our-climate-environment-and-economy</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [81]. Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs (2024) Northern Ireland Food Strategy Framework. Available at: <u>https://www.daera-ni.gov.uk/publications/northern-ireland-food-strategy-framework</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [82]. Department of Education (2013) Healthy food for healthy outcomes. Available at: <u>https://www.education-ni.gov.uk/publications/healthy-food-healthy-outcomes</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [83]. Department of Education (2023) Equality and Human Rights policy screening for discontinuation of School Holiday Food Grant (SHFG) payment scheme at the end of 2022/23 financial year. Available at: <u>https://www.education-ni.gov.uk/publications/equality-and-human-rights-policy-screeningdiscontinuation-school-holiday-food-grant-shfg-payment-scheme-end-202223-financial-year</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [84]. Department of Education (2023) Every CHILD: Department of Education Corporate Plan 2023-28. Available at: <u>https://www.education-ni.gov.uk/publications/every-child-de-corporate-plan-2023-28</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [85]. Department of Health (2010) Healthy Child, Healthy Future: A Framework for the Universal Child Health Promotion Programme in Northern Ireland. Available at: <u>https://www.health-ni.gov.uk/sites/default/files/publications/dhssps/healthychildhealthyfuture.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [86]. Department of Health (2013) Breastfeeding A Great Start: A Strategy for Northern Ireland 2013-2023. Available at: <u>https://www.health-ni.gov.uk/sites/default/files/publications/dhssps/breastfeeding-strategy-2014.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [87]. Department of Health (2015) Learning disability service framework documents. Available at: <u>https://www.health-ni.gov.uk/publications/learning-disability-service-framework-documents</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [88]. Department of Health (2022) Community Pharmacy Discharge Medicines Service. Available at: <u>https://bso.hscni.net/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/CP-Discharge-Service-Pathfinder-Specification-Guidance-290922.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [89]. Department of Health (2022) Health Survey (NI): First Results 2019/20. Available at: <u>https://www.health-ni.gov.uk/news/health-survey-ni-first-results-201920</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [90]. Department of Health (2022) Health survey Northern Ireland: first results 2021/2022. Available at: <u>https://www.health-ni.gov.uk/publications/health-survey-northern-ireland-first-results</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [91]. Department of Health (2023) Children's and Older Person's Oral Health Improvement Plans Consultation. Available at: <u>https://www.health-ni.gov.uk/consultations/childrens-and-older-persons-oral-health-improvement-plans-consultation</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [92]. Department of Health (2023) *Health inequalities annual report 2023*. Available at: <u>https://www.health-ni.gov.uk/topics/health-inequalities-statistics</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [93]. Department of Health (2023) Northern Ireland Children's Oral Health Improvement Plan. Available at: <u>https://www.health-ni.gov.uk/sites/default/files/consultations/health/doh-plan-nicohi.PDF</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [94]. Department of Health and Social Care (2016) Childhood obesity: a plan for action. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/childhood-obesity-a-plan-for-action</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [95]. Department of Health and Social Care (2019) UK Chief Medical Officers' Physical Activity Guidelines. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/physical-activity-guidelines</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [96]. Department of Health and Social Care (2020) Building on the success of front-ofpack nutrition labelling in the UK: a public consultation. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/front-of-pack-nutrition-labelling-in-the-uk-building-on-success</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [97]. Department of Health and Social Care (2021) Consultation outcome Introducing further advertising restrictions on TV and online for products high in fat, salt and sugar: government response. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/further-advertising-restrictions-for-products-high-in-fatsalt-and-sugar/outcome/introducing-further-advertising-restrictions-on-tv-and-online-for-products-highin-fat-salt-and-sugar-government-response</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [98]. Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety (2013) Smoke-Free Legislation in Northern Ireland: A Three Year Review. Available at: <u>https://www.health-ni.gov.uk/sites/default/files/publications/health/tobacco-control-smoke-free-three-year-review.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [99]. Diener, A. and Mudu, P. (2021) How can vegetation protect us from air pollution? A critical review on green spaces' mitigation abilities for air-borne particles from a public health perspective - with implications for urban planning. Science of The Total Environment. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/34271387/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [100]. Dietrich T. et al. (2017) Evidence summary: the relationship between oral and cardiovascular disease. British Dental Journal. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/28281612/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [101]. Education and Training Inspectorate (2022) A Thematic Evaluation Of Physical Education In Primary Schools. Available at: <u>https://www.etini.gov.uk/publications/thematic-evaluation-physical-education-primary-schools</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [102]. Education Authority (2021) Nutrition and Health: Information on the nutrition and health benefits of food and drink that is provided and consumed in schools. Available at: <u>https://www.eani.org.uk/parents/school-meals/nutrition-and-health</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [103]. End Child Poverty (2023) Children are living in families impacted by the two-child limit everywhere in the UK. Available at: <u>https://endchildpoverty.org.uk/two_child_limit/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [104]. Ernst & Young (2021) *The Food and Drink industry, an inclusive sector at the heart of Northern Ireland*. Available at: <u>https://nifda.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/Food-for-Thought-EIA-of-the-Food-and-Drink-sector-in-NI.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [105]. Ernst & Young (2021) The Food and Drink industry, an inclusive sector at the heart of Northern Ireland: Infographic summary of key findings. Available at: <u>https://nifda.co.uk/wp-</u> <u>content/uploads/2021/05/Infographic-summary-of-key-findings.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [106]. Escape-Pain (2022) *Support tools*. Available at: <u>https://escape-pain.org/support-tools/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [107]. European Commission (2020) Farm to Fork strategy: for a fair, healthy and environmentally-friendly food system. Available at: <u>https://food.ec.europa.eu/horizontal-topics/farm-fork-strategy_en</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [108]. Faculty of Public Health (2024) *Health of the Next Generation: Good Food for Children*. Available at: <u>https://www.fph.org.uk/good-food-for-children</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [109]. Food & Drink Federation (2023) *Celebrating Food and Nutrition Report 2023*. Available at: <u>https://www.fdf.org.uk/fdf/resources/publications/reports/celebrating-food-and-nutrition-report-2023/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [110]. Food & Drink Federation (2024) *Action on Fibre*. Available at: <u>https://www.fdf.org.uk/fdf/what-we-do/diet-and-health/action-on-fibre/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [111]. Food & Drink Federation (2024) Action on Fibre: Year 1 achievements (2021-2022). Available at: <u>https://www.fdf.org.uk/globalassets/resources/case-studies/diet--health/action-on-fibre/action-on-fibre-infographic-2023.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [112]. Food & Drink Federation Scotland (2023) *Reformulation for health*. Available at: <u>https://www.fdfscotland.org.uk/fdf/what-we-do/diet-and-health/reformulation-and-portion-size/reformulation-support-for-scotland/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

3-23-18.pdf. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [113]. Food Standards Agency (2022) Food you can trust: FSA Strategy 2022–2027. Available at: <u>https://www.food.gov.uk/document/food-you-can-trust-fsa-strategy-2022-2027</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [114]. Food Standards Scotland (2016) *Monitoring foods and drinks purchased into the home in Scotland*. Available at: <u>https://www.foodstandards.gov.scot/publications-and-research/publications/monitoring-foods-and-drinks-purchased-into-the-home-in-scotland</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [115]. FrameWorks Institute (2018) Communicating about Obesity: A FrameWorks Strategic Report. Available at: https://www.frameworksinstitute.org/app/uploads/2018/03/communicatingaboutobesity_strategicreport_

- [116]. Frameworks UK (2023) Talk about food-related ill health: Another way to shift the childhood obesity conversation. Available at: <u>https://frameworksuk.org/resources/talk-about-food-related-ill-health/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [117]. Furey, S. (2018) Written submission to Interlinkages between poverty and the realization of human rights in the United Kingdom. Visit by the United Nations' Special Rapporteur on Extreme Poverty and Human Rights to the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland from 5 to 16 November 2018. Available at: <u>https://www.ohchr.org/sites/default/files/Documents/Issues/EPoverty/UnitedKingdom/2018/Academics/ DrSinead UlsterUniversity BusinessSchool.docx.</u> (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [118]. Furey, S. (2019) Special Meeting of Joint Committees for engagement on Challenges for the European Union on the occasion of Europe Day. Video: Segment at 12:49 - 20:24. Available at: <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=PhevseEIm-A</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [119]. Furey, S. (2020) Food Poverty: Zero Hunger and the Right to Food. Zero Hunger. Encyclopedia of the UN Sustainable Development Goals. Available at: <u>https://link.springer.com/referenceworkentry/10.1007/978-3-319-95675-6_115</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [120]. Furey, S. (2020) Written evidence Food, Poverty, Health and the Environment Inquiry. UK Parliament Lords Food, Poverty, Health and Environment Committee. Available at: <u>https://committees.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/104996/pdf/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [121]. Furey, S. (2021) Food promotions and the cost of a healthy diet. Proceedings of the Nutrition Society. Available at: <u>https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/proceedings-of-the-nutrition-society/article/food-promotions-and-the-cost-of-a-healthy-diet/B10EAEDCC6B1E865E58DA9F977663616</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [122]. Furey, S. (2022) Food promotions and the cost of a healthy diet. Proceedings of the Nutrition Society. Available at: <u>https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/proceedings-of-the-nutrition-society/article/food-promotions-and-the-cost-of-a-healthy-diet/B10EAEDCC6B1E865E58DA9F977663616</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [123]. Furey, S. and Beacom, E. (2023) Nutrition measures and limits: The dominance of the USDA's Food Insecurity and Hunger Module and its adaptions. In Caraher, M., Coveney, J. and Chopra, M. (Eds) Handbook of food security and society. Gloucestershire: Edward Elgar Publishing. ISBN: 978 1 80037 843 8.
- [124]. Furey, S. and Woodside, J. (2022) *School Meals Case Study: Northern Ireland*. Available at: https://researchonline.lshtm.ac.uk/id/eprint/4671092. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [125]. Furey, S. et al. (2016) An investigation into the prevalence and people's experience of 'food poverty' within Causeway Coast and Glens catchments: Secondary analysis of local authority data. Available at: <u>https://causewaycoastandglens.gov.uk/uploads/general/CCAG_Food_Poverty_Report.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [126]. Furey, S. et al. (2016) Product reformulation in the food and beverage manufacturing and retail industries - the evidence from promotional food and drinks items. Available at: <u>https://www.researchgate.net/publication/313532370 Product reformulation in the food and beverag</u> <u>e manufacturing and retail industries - the evidence from promotional food and drinks items</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [127]. Furey, S. et al. (2019) Joint meeting of Joint Committees on the occasion of Europe Day: 9 May 2019. Available at: <u>https://data.oireachtas.ie/ie/oireachtas/committee/dail/32/joint_committee_on_agriculture_food_and_the_marine/submissions/2019/2019-05-10_opening-statement-dr-sinead-furey-dr-lynsey-hollywood-ulster-university_en.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [128]. Furey, S. et al. (2019) What predicts food insecurity? An online survey. The Lancet. Available at: <u>https://www.thelancet.com/journals/lancet/article/PIIS0140-6736(19)32838-7/fulltext</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [129]. Furey, S. et al. (2019) What's on offer? The types of food and drink on price promotion in retail outlets in the Republic of Ireland. Available at: <u>https://www.safefood.net/getmedia/23cf03c0-5c9e-41b3-85be-6f2b31c0c5fd/Whats-on-offer.aspx?ext=.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [130]. Furey, S. et al. (2023) Expanding social supermarket and food bank provision in Causeway Coast and Glens Council area – experts by experience and food aid managers' perspectives in Socio-Legal Studies Association annual conference 2023 (4th – 6th April 2023). Available at: <u>https://pure.ulster.ac.uk/en/publications/expanding-social-supermarket-and-food-bank-provision-incauseway-</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [131]. Garvey, W., Hurley D. and Kushner F. (2016) Patient-Centered Care of the Patient with Obesity. Endocrine Practice. Available at: <u>https://www.endocrinepractice.org/article/S1530-891X(20)43235-5/abstract</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [132]. Gascon, M. et al. (2016) Residential green spaces and mortality: A systematic review. Environment International. Available at: <u>https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0160412015300799</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [133]. Genius School Food Network (2025) *About GENIUS*. Available at: <u>https://geniusschoolfoodnetwork.com/AboutGENIUS/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [134]. Glasgow Centre for Population Health (2023) *Concepts Series 11 The built environment and health: an evidence review*. Available at: <u>https://www.gcph.co.uk/latest/publications/252-concepts-series-11-the-built-environment-and-health-an-evidence-review</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [135]. Government Office for Science (2007) Reducing obesity: international comparisons. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reducing-obesity-international-comparisons</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [136]. GroundsWell (2023) Climate and Nature Action: A vision for the Connswater Community Greenway. Available at: <u>https://groundswelluk.org/Filestore/ClimateNatureAction_VisionforCCG_231023.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [137]. Holland, C. (2022) *Obesity, oral health and the role of the dental profession*. British Dental Journal. Available at: <u>https://www.nature.com/articles/s41415-022-5242-2</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [138]. Hunter, R. et al. (2019) Environmental, health, wellbeing, social and equity effects of urban green space interventions: A meta-narrative evidence synthesis. Environment International. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/31228780/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [139]. Hunter, R. et al. (2020). Social return on investment analysis of an urban greenway. Cities & Health. Available at: <u>https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/23748834.2020.1766783</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [140]. Hunter, R. et al. (2021). Investigating the physical activity, health, wellbeing, social and environmental effects of a new urban greenway: a natural experiment (the PARC study). International Journal of Behavioral Nutrition and Physical Activity. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/34717650/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [141]. Hunter, R. et al. (2023) Advancing urban green and blue space contributions to public health. Viewpoint. Available at: <u>https://www.thelancet.com/journals/lanpub/article/PIIS2468-2667(23)00156-1/fulltext</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [142]. Ibec (2019) Sector Priorities for future success Reformulation. Available at: <u>https://www.ibec.ie/connect-and-learn/industries/food-and-drink/food-drink-ireland/working-groups/public-affairs</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [143]. INFORMAS (2024) *Benchmarking food environments*. Available at: <u>https://www.informas.org/about-informas/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [144]. Institute of Food Science and Technology (2023) Food Science Fact Sheet 15: Food Processing. Available at: <u>https://www.ifst.org/sites/default/files/IFST%20Food%20Processing%20Fact%20Sheet%20new%20%282%29.pdf.</u> (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [145]. Institute of Public Health (n.d.). *Commercial Determinants of Health*. Available at: <u>https://www.publichealth.ie/commercial-determinants-health</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [146]. Involve and QUB (2023) How can car dependency and levels of car use in Belfast be reduced? Available at: <u>https://www.qub.ac.uk/sites/cardep/Filestore/Filetoupload,1749640,en.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [147]. IPSOS MORI (2021) The next epidemic? People living with obesity nearly twice as likely to have bad mental health. Available at: <u>https://www.ipsos.com/en-uk/next-epidemic-people-living-obesity-nearlytwice-likely-have-bad-mental-health</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [148]. Irish Universities Nutrition Alliance (n.d.) *National Food Consumption Surveys in Ireland*. Available at: <u>https://www.iuna.net/surveyreports</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [149]. Irwin C. et al. (2007) Periodontics: 2. Risk factors and susceptibility in periodontitis. Dental Update. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/17624143/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [150]. Jennings K. and Phillips K. (2017) Eating Disorder Examination-Questionnaire (EDE-Q): Norms for Clinical Sample of Female Adolescents with Anorexia Nervosa. Archives of Psychiatric Nursing. Available at: <u>https://pmc.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/articles/PMC5728684/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [151]. Jennings, A. et al. (2014) Evaluation of a multidisciplinary Tier 3 weight management service for adults with morbid obesity, or obesity and comorbidities, based in primary care. Clinical Obesity. Available at: <u>https://pmc.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/articles/PMC4253319/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [152]. Joseph Rowntree Foundation (2024) A Minimum Income Standard for the United Kingdom in 2024. Available at: <u>https://www.jrf.org.uk/a-minimum-income-standard-for-the-united-kingdom-in-2024</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [153]. Kellogg's (2018) Can everyone access affordable, nutritious food? Available at: <u>https://www.kelloggs.co.uk/content/dam/europe/kelloggs_gb/pdf/Kelloggs_Food_Desert_Brochure.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [154]. Kelly, A. et al. (2021) Addressing obesity in adults: a mapping study of policies and services in Northern Ireland using the Behaviour Change Wheel. Abstract from UK Society for Behavioural Medicine Annual Scientific Meeting 2021. Available at: <u>https://pure.qub.ac.uk/en/publications/addressing-obesity-in-</u> adults-a-mapping-study-of-policies-and-serv. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [155]. Kerins, C. et al. (2024) News media framing of food poverty and insecurity in high-income countries: A rapid review. Health Promotion International. Available at: <u>https://pmc.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/articles/PMC10752350/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [156]. Kessler, R. et al. (2013) The prevalence and correlates of binge eating disorder in the World Health Organization World Mental Health Surveys. Biological Psychiatry. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/23290497/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [157]. Kim K. et al. (2011) Economic burden of resected squamous cell carcinoma of the head and neck in an incident cohort of patients in the UK. Head, Head & Neck Oncology. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/22035422/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [158]. Kornstein, S. (2017). Epidemiology and recognition of binge-eating disorder in psychiatry and primary care. The Journal of Clinical Psychiatry. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/28125172/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [159]. Kyle, E., Kelly, A. and McGowan, L. (2024) Personal experiences and preferences for weightmanagement services from adults living with overweight and obesity in the United Kingdom. Nutrients. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/38999764/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [160]. Lakerveld, J. and Mackenbach, J. (2017) The Upstream Determinants of Adult Obesity. Obesity Facts. Available at: <u>https://pmc.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/articles/PMC5644962/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [161]. Lauby-Secretan, B. et al. (2016) Body Fatness and Cancer--Viewpoint of the IARC Working Group. New England Journal of Medicine. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/27557308/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [162]. Logue, J. et al. (2014) Outcomes of a specialist weight management programme in the UK National Health Service: prospective study of 1838 patients. British Medical Journal. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/24394799/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [163]. Madruga, M. et al. (2019) Trends in food consumption according to the degree of food processing among the UK population over 11 years. British Journal of Nutrition. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/36259459/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [164]. Make Space for Girls (2023) Make Space for Girls: the research background 2023. Available at: <u>https://www.makespaceforgirls.co.uk/resources/research-report-2023</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [165]. McClelland, J. et al. (2024) Development of a habit-based intervention to support healthy eating and physical activity behaviours for pregnant women with overweight or obesity: healthy habits in pregnancy and beyond (HHIPBe). BMC Pregnancy and Childbirth. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/39550532/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [166]. McClelland, N. (2019) Putting food poverty in NI on the map. Available from: <u>https://pure.ulster.ac.uk/en/clippings/putting-food-poverty-in-ni-on-the-map</u> and <u>https://sluggerotoole.com/2019/10/22/putting-food-poverty-in-ni-on-the-map/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [167]. McGowan, L. (2022) Integrating the voice of those with lived experience: reflections on personal and public involvement and engagement throughout the research process. Available at: <u>https://pure.qub.ac.uk/en/publications/integrating-the-voice-of-those-with-lived-experience-reflections-</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [168]. McGowan, L., & McClelland, J. (2022) Raising the issue of excess weight in the pre-pregnancy period: Having supportive and non-stigmatizing conversations with patients. International Journal of Birth and Parent Education. Available at: <u>https://pure.qub.ac.uk/en/publications/raising-the-issue-of-excess-weight-in-the-pre-pregnancy-period-ha</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [169]. McKinsey Global Institute (2014) Overcoming obesity: An initial economic analysis. Available at: <u>https://www.mckinsey.com/~/media/mckinsey/business%20functions/economic%20studies%20temp/ou</u> <u>r%20insights/how%20the%20world%20could%20better%20fight%20obesity/mgi_overcoming_obesity_f</u> <u>ull_report.ashx</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [170]. Mealey B. and Ocampo G. (2007) *Diabetes mellitus and periodontal disease*. Periodontal. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/17474930/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [171]. Morelife (n.d.) *The power to be more you*. Available at: <u>https://www.more-life.co.uk/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [172]. Muir, S et al. (2023) UK government's new placement legislation is a 'good first step': a rapid qualitative analysis of consumer, business, enforcement and health stakeholder perspectives. BMC Medicine.

Available at: <u>https://bmcmedicine.biomedcentral.com/articles/10.1186/s12916-023-02726-9</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [173]. National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (2006) *Obesity prevention Clinical guideline [CG43]*. Available at: <u>https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/CG43</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [174]. National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (2010) Weight management before, during and after pregnancy [PH27]. Available at: <u>https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ph27</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [175]. National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (2014) Obesity: identification, assessment and management Clinical guideline [CG189]. Available at: <u>https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/cg189</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [176]. National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (2014) *Physical activity: exercise referral schemes Public health guideline [PH54].* Available at: <u>https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ph54</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [177]. National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (2025) Maternal and child nutrition: nutrition and weight management in pregnancy, and nutrition in children up to 5 years [NG247]. Available at: <u>https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng247</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [178]. National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (2025) Overweight and obesity management NICE guideline [NG246]. Available at: <u>https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng246</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [179]. National Institute for Health and Care Research (2023) Getting RREAL about implementation of a Whole Systems Approach (WSA) to obesity prevention in Northern Ireland (NI): A process evaluation (PHIRST Connect). Available at: <u>https://fundingawards.nihr.ac.uk/award/NIHR135936</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [180]. National Institute for Health and Care Research (2023) Optimising a Whole Systems Approach: Coproduced Key Tips for Policy Makers and Practitioners. Available at: <u>https://phirst.nihr.ac.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2023/12/Optimising-a-WSA-5.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [181]. NESTA: National Endowment for Science, Technology and the Arts (2021) *Changing minds about changing behaviours: obesity in focus*. Available at: <u>https://www.nesta.org.uk/report/changing-minds-about-changing-behaviours-obesity-focus/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [182]. Nestlé (2022) Creating Shared Value and Sustainability Report 2022: Advancing regenerative food systems at scale. Available at: <u>https://www.nestle.com/sites/default/files/2023-03/creating-shared-valuesustainability-report-2022-en.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [183]. Nestlé (2023) Nestlé sets target to boost sales of its more nutritious foods and steps up support for balanced diets. Available at: <u>https://www.nestle.com/media/news/nutrition-health-balanced-diet-sales-target</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [184]. NHS England (2018) NHS staff health & wellbeing: CQUIN 2017-19 Indicator 1 Implementation Support. Available at: <u>https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/staff-health-wellbeing-cquin-2017-19-implementation-support.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [185]. NHS England (2023) NHS community pharmacy hypertension case-finding advanced service. Available at: <u>https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/PRN00173-adv-service-spec-nhscommunity-pharmacy-hypertension-case-finding-advanced-service-v2.3.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [186]. NHS England (2024) National Child Measurement Programme. Available at: <u>https://digital.nhs.uk/services/national-child-measurement-programme/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [187]. NHS England (n.d.) Green social prescribing. Available at: <u>https://www.england.nhs.uk/personalisedcare/social-prescribing/green-social-prescribing/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [188]. NISRA (2020) 2019 Mid-year Population Estimates for Northern Ireland. Available at: https://niopa.qub.ac.uk/bitstream/NIOPA/6467/16/MYE19-Bulletin.pdf. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [189]. NISRA (2023) Northern Ireland Environmental Statistics Report. Available at: <u>https://www.daera-ni.gov.uk/sites/default/files/publications/daera/ni-environmental-statistics-report-2023.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [190]. Northern Ireland Affairs Committee (2019) Community pharmacy in Northern Ireland. Available at: <u>https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201919/cmselect/cmniaf/300/30010.htm</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [191]. Northern Ireland Assembly (2015) Children's Services Co-operation Act (Northern Ireland) 2015. Available at: <u>https://www.legislation.gov.uk/nia/2015/10/contents/enacted</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [192]. Northern Ireland Executive (2016) *Delivering Social Change: The Executive's Child Poverty Strategy*. Available at: <u>https://www.communities-ni.gov.uk/sites/default/files/publications/ofmdfm/child-poverty-strategy.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [193]. NVTV (2018) Focal Point Extra, studio discussion on food poverty. Video. Available at: <u>https://player.vimeo.com/video/269817901</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [194]. Obesity Action Coalition (n.d.) People-First Language For Obesity. Available at: <u>https://www.obesityaction.org/wp-content/uploads/1033162_FirstPersonOne-Pager01_041921.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [195]. Obesity Action Coalition (n.d.) *Weight Bias: People-First Language*. Available at: <u>https://www.obesityaction.org/action-through-advocacy/weight-bias/people-first-language/#:~:text=Here%20are%20some%20examples%20of,the%20bus%20was%20very%20obese.</u> <u>%E2%80%9D</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [196]. Observatory for Sport in Scotland (2019) Sports participation in Scotland: trends and future prospects. Available at: <u>https://oss.scot/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Final-Revised-participation-report-for-publication28-05-2019.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [197]. Office for Health Improvement and Disparities (2022) *Sugar reduction programme: industry progress* 2015 to 2020. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sugar-reduction-programme-industry-progress-2015-to-2020</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [198]. Office for Health Improvement and Disparities (2023) National Diet and Nutrition Survey. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/national-diet-and-nutrition-survey</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [199]. Office for National Statistics (2022) Health benefits from recreation, natural capital, UK: 2022. Available at: <u>https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/environmentalaccounts/bulletins/healthbenefitsfromrecreationnaturalcapitaluk/2022</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [200]. O'Kane, N. et al. (2024) Leadership for Healthy People and Planet: An invitation to accelerate integrated policy and action on health and environment. Available at: <u>https://pure.qub.ac.uk/en/publications/leadership-for-healthy-people-and-planet-an-invitation-to-acceler</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [201]. Online HSCNI (n.d.) *Pharmacy First*. Available at: <u>https://online.hscni.net/our-work/pharmacy-and-medicines-management/community-pharmacy-services/pharmacy-first/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [202]. Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (2019) The Economy of Well-being Creating opportunities for people's well-being and economic growth SDD WORKING PAPER No. 102. Available at: <u>https://one.oecd.org/document/SDD/DOC(2019)2/En/pdf#:~:text=lt%20provides%20analysis%20of%20</u> <u>several,Health%3B%20Social%20Protection%20and%20Redistribution%3B</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [203]. Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (2019) The Heavy Burden of Obesity: The Economics of Prevention. Available at: <u>https://www.oecd.org/en/publications/the-heavy-burden-of-obesity_67450d67-en.html</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [204]. Outdoor Recreation Northern Ireland (2021) Outdoor Recreation Northern Ireland Strategic Plan 2020-2025. Available at: <u>https://www.out-scape.com/publication/outdoor-recreation-ni/company-reports/2020-2025/outdoor-recreation-northern-ireland-strategic-plan-2020-2025/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [205]. Outscape (2023) *GreenspaceNI Map*. Available at: <u>https://www.out-scape.com/news/greenspaceni-map/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [206]. Outscape (n.d.) *People in the Outdoors Monitor for Northern Ireland*. Available at: <u>https://www.out-scape.com/pomni/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [207]. Parson, K (2019) What transforming food systems means for policy: from ideas to action. Global Food Security. Available at: <u>https://www.foodsecurity.ac.uk/blog/what-transforming-food-systems-means-for-policy-from-ideas-to-action/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [208]. Public Health Agency (2023) Children's Health in Northern Ireland 2021/22: A statistical profile of births using data drawn from the Northern Ireland Child Health System, Northern Ireland Maternity System and Northern Ireland Statistics and Research Agency. Available at: <u>https://www.publichealth.hscni.net/sites/default/files/2023-05/RUAG%20Childrens%20Health%20in%20NI%20-%202021-22%20-%20FINAL.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [209]. Public Health England (2015) Sugar reduction: from evidence into action. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sugar-reduction-from-evidence-into-action</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [210]. Public Health England (2019) Health of women before and during pregnancy: health behaviours, risk factors and inequalities: Available at: <u>https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5dc00b22e5274a4a9a465013/Health_of_women_before_and_during_pregnancy_2019.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [211]. Public Health England (2019) Whole systems approach to obesity: A guide to support local approaches to promoting a healthy weight. Available at: <u>https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5d396e7140f0b604de59fde9/Whole_systems_approach_to_obesity_guide.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [212]. Public Health England (2020) *Improving access to greenspace A new review for 2020*. Available at: <u>https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/9044</u> <u>39/Improving_access_to_greenspace_2020_review.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [213]. Public Health Scotland (2017) *Rapid evidence review restriction of price promotions*. Available at: <u>https://www.publichealthscotland.scot/publications/rapid-evidence-review-restriction-of-price-promotions/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [214]. Public Health Scotland (2017) Rapid evidence review: The impact of promotions on high fat, sugar and salt (HFSS) food and drink on consumer purchasing and consumption behaviour and the effectiveness of retail environment interventions. Available at: <u>https://publichealthscotland.scot/publications/rapidevidence-review-restriction-of-price-promotions</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [215]. Public Health Scotland (2022) Whole systems approach (WSA) to diet and healthy weight: early adopters programme process evaluation. Available at: <u>https://publichealthscotland.scot/media/16764/whole-systems-approach-wsa-to-diet-and-healthyweight-early-adopters-programme-process-evaluation.pdf.</u> (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [216]. Public Health Scotland (2023) *Health impact scoping of active travel strategy guidelines*. Available at: <u>https://www.publichealthscotland.scot/publications/health-impact-scoping-of-active-travel-strategy-guidance/health-impact-scoping-of-active-travel-strategy-guidance/.</u> (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [217]. R. Johnston. (2023). The economic impact of smoking, alcohol consumption and obesity in Northern Ireland. Available at: <u>https://www.bhf.org.uk/-/media/files/what-we-do/in-your-area-northern-ireland-pages/ni-cost-to-society-figures-web.pdf?rev=febe531ce0ce495a932ca0613f760ed5&hash=D90EF4779523F69B25F854A512132837.</u> (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [218]. Rogers, N. et al. (2023) Associations between trajectories of obesity prevalence in English primary school children and the UK soft drinks industry levy: An interrupted time series analysis of surveillance data. PLOS Medicine. Available at: <u>https://journals.plos.org/plosmedicine/article?id=10.1371/journal.pmed.1004160</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [219]. Rose, G. (1981) Strategy of prevention: lessons from cardiovascular disease. British Medical Journal (Clin Res Ed). Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/6786649/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [220]. Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health (2019) Supporting professionals to have healthier weight conversations - consensus statement. Available at: <u>https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/resources/supporting-professionals-have-healthier-weight-conversations-consensus-statement</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [221]. Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health (2022) *Mandatory calorie labelling in the out of home* sector in Scotland - consultation response. Available at: <u>https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/resources/mandatory-</u> calorie-labelling-out-home-sector-scotland-consultation-response. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [222]. Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health (2022) *Paediatricians call out unregulated, high sugar and salt baby foods*. Available at: <u>https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/news-events/news/paediatricians-call-out-</u> <u>unregulated-high-sugar-salt-baby-foods</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [223]. Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health (n.d.) *Child health inequalities and poverty*. Available at: https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/key-topics/child-health-inequalities-poverty. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [224]. Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health Scotland (2018) Scottish Government Consultation: A Healthier Future – Action and Ambitions on Diet, Activity and Healthy Weight: Response to Consultation from the Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health. Available at: <u>https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/2018-07/RCPCH%20Scotland%20-%20A%20healthier%20future%20-%20action%20and%20ambitions%20on%20diet%2C%20activity%20and%20healthy%20weight%20-%20response.pdf. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).</u>
- [225]. Royal College of Physicians (2020) Health inequalities and obesity. Available at: <u>https://www.rcp.ac.uk/news-and-media/news-and-opinion/health-inequalities-and-obesity/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [226]. Rutter, H. et al. (2017) The need for a complex systems model of evidence for public health. The Lancet. Available at: <u>https://www.thelancet.com/journals/lancet/article/PIIS0140-6736(17)31267-9/fulltext</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [227]. safefood (2014) The Cost of a Healthy Food Basket in Northern Ireland 2014-2022. Available at: https://www.safefood.net/professional/research/healthy-basket-ni. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [228]. safefood (2021) Whole Systems Approach to Childhood Obesity. Available at: <u>https://www.safefood.net/professional/research/whole-systems-approach</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [229]. Sainsbury's (2023) Our improved chicken welfare. Available at: <u>https://www.about.sainsburys.co.uk/sustainability/plan-for-better/our-stories/2023/our-improved-chicken-welfare</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [230]. Sattar, N. et al. (2023) Treating chronic diseases without tackling excess adiposity promotes multimorbidity. Available at: <u>https://www.thelancet.com/journals/landia/article/PIIS2213-8587(22)00317-5/abstract</u>.
- [231]. Scientific Advisory Committee on Nutrition (2023) SACN statement on processed foods and health. Available at: <u>https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1168</u> <u>948/SACN-position-statement-Processed-Foods-and-Health.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [232]. Simmonds, M. et al. (2016) Predicting adult obesity from childhood obesity: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Obesity Reviews. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/26696565/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [233]. Simpson, H. et al. (2024) A preoperative package of care for osteoarthritis, consisting of weight loss, orthotics, rehabilitation, and topical and oral analgesia (OPPORTUNITY): a two-centre, open-label, randomised controlled feasibility trial. The Lancet Rheumatology. Available at: <u>https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2665991323003375</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [234]. Sims, M. et al. (2010) Short term impact of smoke-free legislation in England: retrospective analysis of hospital admissions for myocardial infarction British Medical Journal. <u>https://www.bmj.com/content/340/bmj.c2161</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [235]. Skamagas, M. et al. (2008) Update on diabetes mellitus: prevention, treatment, and association with oral diseases. Oral Diseases. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/18302671/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [236]. Sport Ireland (2022) Children's Sport Participation and Physical Activity Study 2022 Summary Report. Available at: <u>https://www.sportireland.ie/research/children-participation/csppa-2022</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [237]. Sport NI (n.d.) Why is Taking Part in Sport Important for Children? Available at: <u>https://www.sportni.net/get-active/taking-part-sport-important-children/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [238]. Spyreli, E. et al. (2022) Public beliefs about the consequences of living with obesity in the Republic of Ireland and Northern Ireland. BMC Public Health. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/36229815/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [239]. Spyreli, E. et al. (2022) Public beliefs about the consequences of living with obesity in the Republic of Ireland and Northern Ireland. Available at: <u>https://pure.qub.ac.uk/en/publications/public-beliefs-about-the-consequences-of-living-with-obesity-in-t</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [240]. Sustain (2024) 3 in 4 parents support a ban on junk food displays at checkouts. Available at: <u>https://www.sustainweb.org/news/apr19_promotions/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [241]. Sustainable Food Places (2025) Nourish Northern Ireland our Nation Partner for Sustainable Food Places in Northern Ireland. Available at: <u>https://www.sustainablefoodplaces.org/northern_ireland/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [242]. Sustrans (n.d.) *Workplaces: We can help you introduce active travel in your workplace*. Available at: <u>https://www.sustrans.org.uk/for-professionals/workplaces/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [243]. Tate, C. et al. (2023) The social return on investment of an urban regeneration project using real-world data: the Connswater Community Greenway, Belfast, UK. Cities & Health. Available at: <u>https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/23748834.2023.2211226</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [244]. Taylor G. and Borgnakke, W. (2008) Periodontal disease: associations with diabetes, glycaemic control and complications. Oral Diseases. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/18336370/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [245]. The Academy of Medical Sciences (2024) Prioritising early childhood to promote the nation's health, wellbeing and prosperity. Available at: <u>https://acmedsci.ac.uk/file-download/16927511</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [246]. The British Psychological Society (2019) *Psychological perspectives on obesity: Addressing policy, practice and research priorities.* Available at: <u>https://www.bps.org.uk/guideline/psychological-perspectives-obesity-addressing-policy-practice-and-research-priorities</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [247]. The British Psychological Society (2022) A psychological manifesto for the Northern Ireland Assembly. Available at: <u>https://cms.bps.org.uk/sites/default/files/2022-09/A%20psychological%20manifesto%20for%20the%20Northern%20Ireland%20Assembly.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [248]. The Education and Training Inspectorate (2022) *A Thematic Evaluation of Physical Education in Primary Schools*. Available at: <u>https://www.etini.gov.uk/sites/etini.gov.uk/files/publications/a-thematic-evaluation-of-physical-education-in-primary-schools.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [249]. The European Association for the Study of Obesity (n.d.) *Obesity Image Bank*. Available at: <u>https://easo.org/media-portal/obesity-image-bank/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [250]. The Executive Office (2023) Ending Violence Against Women and Girls Strategic Framework. Available at: <u>https://www.executiveoffice-ni.gov.uk/topics/ending-violence-against-women-and-girls</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [251]. The Food Foundation (2021) *Children's Future Food Inquiry*. Available at: <u>https://foodfoundation.org.uk/sites/default/files/2021-09/Childrens-Future-Food-Inquiry-report.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [252]. The Food Foundation (2022) Major report highlights impact of Britain's disastrous food policy: The Broken Plate 2022 report. Available at: <u>https://foodfoundation.org.uk/press-release/major-report-highlights-impact-britains-disastrous-food-policy#:~:text=Healthy%20nutritious%20food%20is%20nearly,calories%20of%20less%20healthy%20food%20foods.</u> (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [253]. The Food Foundation (n.d.) *Feed the Future campaign*. Available at: <u>https://foodfoundation.org.uk/news/feed-future-campaign</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [254]. The Open University (n.d.) *Take Five to Age Well: Empowering the UK towards longer, healthier lives*. Available at: <u>https://wels.open.ac.uk/research/projects/take-5</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [255]. Theis, D. and White, M. (2021) Is Obesity Policy in England Fit for Purpose? Analysis of Government Strategies and Policies, 1992-2020. The Millbank Quarterly. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/33464689/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [256]. Thomas, M. et al. (2023) Supermarket top-up of Healthy Start vouchers increases fruit and vegetable purchases in low-income households. Nutrition Bulletin. Available at: <u>https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/nbu.12627</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [257]. Ulster University Business School (2019) Food Poverty Research at Ulster University Business School Forum. Video Available at: <u>https://youtu.be/ieq1BkJ3A_k?si=BnSJabtBTqoYICyR</u> (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [258]. UNICEF (n.d.) Policy Brief: Front of pack nutrition labelling of foods and beverages. Available at: <u>https://www.unicef.org/media/116686/file/Front-of-Pack%20Nutrition%20Labelling%20(FOPNL).pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [259]. Unison (n.d.) *Free School Meals For All*. Available at: <u>https://www.unison-ni.org.uk/free-school-meals-for-all</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [260]. Versus Arthritis (2024) *Let's Move with Leon*. Available at: <u>https://www.versusarthritis.org/about-arthritis/exercising-with-arthritis/lets-move-with-leon/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [261]. Villeneuve, P. et al. (2012) A cohort study relating urban green space with mortality in Ontario, Canada. Environmental Research. Available at: <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/22483437/</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [262]. Welsh Government (2023) *Press release: Restriction on high fat, sugar and salt products to be introduced.* Available at: <u>https://www.gov.wales/restriction-high-fat-sugar-and-salt-products-be-introduced.</u> (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [263]. Wilson, A. et al. (2016) Nudging healthier food and beverage choices through salience and priming. Evidence from a systematic review. Food Quality and Preference. Available at: <u>https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0950329316300210</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [264]. World Health Organisation (2017) Urban Green Space Interventions and Health: A review of impacts and effectiveness. Available at: <u>https://www.who.int/andorra/publications/m/item/urban-green-spaceinterventions-and-health--a-review-of-impacts-and-effectiveness.-full-report</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [265]. World Health Organisation (2018) Global action plan on physical activity 2018–2030: more active people for a healthier world. Available at: <u>https://www.who.int/publications/i/item/9789241514187</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [266]. World Health Organisation (2020) Improving Early Childhood Development: WHO Guideline. Available at: <u>https://iris.who.int/bitstream/handle/10665/331306/9789240002098-eng.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [267]. World Health Organisation (2021) Oral Health, Seventy Fourth World Health Assembly, Agenda item 13.2. Available at: <u>https://apps.who.int/gb/ebwha/pdf_files/WHA74/A74_R5-en.pdf</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [268]. World Health Organisation (2023) Commercial determinants of health. Available at: <u>https://www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/commercial-determinants-of-health</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [269]. World Health Organisation (2023) Health service delivery framework for prevention and management of obesity. Available at: <u>https://www.who.int/publications/i/item/9789240073234</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [270]. World Health Organisation (2023) Noncommunicable diseases and climate change. Report of an expert meeting, Bonn, Germany, 1–2 December 2022. Available at: <u>https://www.who.int/europe/publications/i/item/WHO-EURO-2023-7816-47584-70047</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [271]. World Health Organisation (2023) *The Health Service Delivery Framework for Prevention and Management of Obesity*. Available at:.<u>https://cdn.who.int/media/docs/default-source/obesity/health-</u>

<u>service-delivery-framework-prevention-management-obesity.pdf?sfvrsn=975df711_3&download=true</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).

- [272]. World Health Organisation (2023) WHO acceleration plan to stop obesity. Available at: https://www.who.int/publications/i/item/9789240075634. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [273]. World Health Organisation (2024) *Obesity and overweight*. Available at: <u>https://www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/obesity-and-overweight</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [274]. World Health Organisation (n.d.) Health Promotion: Healthy settings. Available at: <u>https://www.who.int/teams/health-promotion/enhanced-wellbeing/healthy-settings</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [275]. World Health Organisation (n.d.) Social Determinants of Health: Economic and Commercial Determinants of Health. Available at: <u>https://www.who.int/teams/social-determinants-of-health/economic-and-commercial-determinants-of-health</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [276]. World Health Organization. (2018). *Healthy Cities Vision*. Available at: <u>https://www.who.int/europe/news-room/fact-sheets/item/healthy-cities-vision</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [277]. World Health Organization. (2023). WHO recommends stronger policies to protect children from the harmful impact of food marketing. Available at: <u>https://www.who.int/news/item/03-07-2023-whorecommends-stronger-policies-to-protect-children-from-the-harmful-impact-of-food-marketing</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [278]. World Obesity (2022) World Obesity Atlas 2022. Available at: <u>https://www.worldobesity.org/resources/resource-library/world-obesity-atlas-2022</u>. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [279]. WRAP (2023) Annual Survey of Redistribution Organisations in the UK 2022 Update. Available at: <u>https://www.wrap.ngo/sites/default/files/2023-09/Annual%20survey%20of%20redistribution%20organisations%20in%20the%20UK%20-2022%20update_Methodology%20and%20Data%20sheet.pdf.</u> (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).
- [280]. YouGov (2023) Trolley Trends: Shifting the nation towards healthier shopping. Available at: <u>https://www.cancerresearchuk.org/sites/default/files/trolley_trends_-</u> full report and policy discussion.pdf. (Accessed on: 20 January 2025).